
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, March 13, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..……………………….Board Member Michael Thompson 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – Officers Carlos Arellano, Mark Nelson, Nickolas Hitterman and Haley Ciaccio  
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Nancy Edwardsen, Winnebago County Animal Services, Con 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of February 13, 2025 minutes  
B. Layover of February 27, 2025 minutes 

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
 
9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..………………………………..…..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee…………………………………………………….John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Cesar Chavez versus Winnebago County 
 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. Resolution Electing to Opt-In to the Illinois Electronics Recycling Program for Program 

Year 2026 
3. Resolution Allocating Host Fee Funds to the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, 

Auditorium and Office Building Authority D/B/A the Rockford Area Venues and 
Entertainment Authority (RAVE) for Capital Improvement Projects and Infrastructure 
at the BMO Center 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Countywide Camera Project Additional Hardware Using CIP 2025 

Funds  
Cost: $342,141 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Information Technology Support Services with 
Rockford Housing Authority 

4. Resolution Awarding PC Obsolescence Project Using CIP 2025 Funds 
Cost: $365,250 

5. Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Managed Detection and Response Using CIP 2025 
Funds 
Cost: $377,388 

6. Resolution Awarding Uninterrupted Power Supplies Using CIP 2025 Funds  
Cost: $66,584 

7. Resolution Granting a Temporary Construction Easement from Property at 650 W. 
State St. in the City of Rockford to the State of Illinois Department of Transportation 
for Road Construction Purposes 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
Appointment read in on February 13, 2025 
A.   River Bluff Board of Directors, Annual Compensation: None 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

1.   Lowell Ingram (New Reappointment), Machesney Park, Illinois, to fill the remainder of 
a 4-year term (Trent Brass) expiring January 2027 

 
Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Various Health Department Grant 

Awards Laid Over from February 27, 2025 Meeting 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, March 27, 2025 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 























CONSENT 
AGENDA 



All applying organizations have complied with the requirements of the Winnebago

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31264 1
VIETNAM VETERANS OF 
AMERICA 05/09/25-10/11/25 $2,650.00

31270 1 TEMPLE BETH-EL 04/16/25-05/21/25 $3,000.00

31272 1
HARLEM COMMUNITY 
CENTER 03/28/25-05/30/25 $4,000.00

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

31271 1 2 WHEEL INN 03/15/25-03/29/25 $800.00

LICENSE # OF
# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT

The Following Have Requested a Class D,E,& F Limited Annual License
LICENSE # OF

# RAFFLES NAME OF ORGANIZATION LICENSE DATES AMOUNT
31265 1 KISHWAUKEE VALLEY ABATE 03/28/25-03/28/26 $4,999.99
31266 1 S.M. & S.F. CLUB 03/31/25-03/31/26 $5,000.00
31267 1 S.M. & S.F. CLUB 03/31/25-03/31/26 $2,500.00
31268 1 VENETIAN CLUB 04/01/25-03/31/26 $2,500.00
31269 1 VENETIAN CLUB 04/01/25-03/31/26 $5,000.00

Deputy Clerk KRYSTAL SOTO

Date
Winnebago County Clerk

RAFFLE APPLICATION REPORT

Presently the County Clerk's office has  Raffle Applications submitted by
6 different organizations for 9 Raffles.

County Raffle Ordinance.  All fees have been collected, bonds received and all
individuals involved with the raffles have received the necessary Sheriff's

Department clearance.

The Following Have Requested a Class A, General License

The Following Have Requested a Class B, MULTIPLE (2, 3 OR 4) LICENSE

This concludes my report,

13-Mar-25LORI GUMMOW

The Following Have Requested a Class C, One Time Emergency License







Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee 
Committee Date: March 6, 2025 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled Cesar Chavez versus Winnebago County 
Board Meeting Date: March 13, 2025 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: $47,272.13 
If not, explain funding source:    Budget Impact: $47,272.13 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535             Tort Judgement Fund/Worker’s Comp Claims 

Background Information:  Settlement for Cesar Chavez in the amount of $47,272.13. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its March 13, 2025 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated this settlement on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

CESAR CHAVEZ VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having a claim asserted against 
it by Cesar Chavez for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Sheriff’s 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $47,272.13 for the settlement funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled Cesar Chavez versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Cesar Chavez while in the employment of the 
Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of $$47,272.13 for the settlement for 
permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for Cesar Chavez in the amount of 
$47,272.13 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                      PAUL ARENA 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                         CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Monday, March 3, 2025  
Committee: Economic Development 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 

County Board Office 
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov 

Document Title:  Resolution Electing To Opt-In To The Illinois Electronics Recycling Program 
For Program Year 2026 

County Code: NA 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 
Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $ 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Winnebago County has voluntarily participated since 2019 (program inception) in the 

State of Illinois, Consumer Electronics Recycling Act (CERA), Program. The County does have the 
option to withdraw from participating in the Program at any time, if the Board were to desire to. 
The CERA Program requires manufacturers to financially support the recycling of electronic waste 
as specified by the program (Examples: TV’s, Computers & Monitors, Printers, DVD Players, VCRs, 
Electronic Keyboards, Fax Machines, Scanners, etc.). The County has aligned with Keep Northern 
Illinois Beautiful (KNIB) who is a recycling expert in Winnebago County and oversees the 
operation/management of this. KNIB is a third party in this arrangement and have successfully 
run this program with the County assisting us by handling this service and simultaneously 
lessening the cost that the County would otherwise have to occur.  

https://epa.illinois.gov/topics/waste-management/materials-management/electronics-recycling1.html 

Recommendation: 
Administration and the County Board has supported this initiative since 2019. More recently the 
Board approved Resolution 2020-CR-026 (FY-2021), 2021-CR-027 (FY-2022), 2022-CR-013 (FY-
2023), 2023-CR-028 (FY-2024), and 2024-CR-025 (FY-2025). This Resolution is to continue to 
voluntarily opt-in to this Program for calendar year 2026. This effort helps reduce costs that 
would otherwise become financial burdens to other County Departments.  

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:  
Yes 

Follow-Up: 
Keeping Northern Illinois Beautiful (KNIB) & County Staff provide updates to the Economic 
Development Committee periodically on this topic, typically on an annual basis.

mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov
https://epa.illinois.gov/topics/waste-management/materials-management/electronics-recycling1.html


Sponsored By: John Sweeney   County Board Meeting: March 13, 2025 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2025 CR ____ 
 
 

 RESOLUTION ELECTING TO OPT-IN TO THE ILLINOIS ELECTRONICS 
RECYCLING PROGRAM FOR PROGRAM YEAR 2026 

 
 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois adopted the Consumer Electronics Recycling Act (the 
“Act”) in 2018, recognizing that many older and obsolete consumer electronic products contain 
materials which may pose environmental and health risks that should be managed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State also acknowledged that consumer electronic products contain 
metals, plastics, glass, and other potentially valuable materials, which can be reused and recycled 
to conserve natural resources and energy; and    
 

WHEREAS, the State determined that manufacturers of electronic products should share 
responsibility for the proper management of obsolete consumer electronic products as the cost 
burden of collecting and processing these items for reuse and recycling would be significant for 
Illinois counties and municipalities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act requires manufacturers to provide a manufacturer e-waste program 
to transport and recycle residential covered electronic devices collected at, and prepared for 
transport from, program collection sites; and 

 
WHEREAS, counties and municipalities that wish to participate in the e-waste program 

must opt-in to the program by March 1 of each year and provide collection sites for the covered 
electronic devices; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago desires to continue the partnership with Keep 

Northern Illinois Beautiful, which has been in place since program year 2019 to provide 
collection sites for covered electronic devices. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, that the County of Winnebago elects to opt-in to the Illinois Electronics Recycling 
Program for Program Year 2026. 
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Winnebago County Chief Operations 
Officer, County Auditor, and the County Administrator.     
 
 
 



2 
 

       Respectfully submitted, 
        Economic Development Committee 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 

RAY THOMPSON  RAY THOMPSON 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 
 

















Page 1 of 3 

 

 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS – COUNTY INFORMATION 
 

I L L I N O I S  E L E C T R O N I C S  R E C Y C L I N G  P R O G R A M  
 

 

What is the Illinois Electronics Recycling Program? 

The Consumer Electronics Recycling Act (CERA) establishes a statewide system for recycling and/or reusing a 

specific set of electronic devices (CEDs) from Illinois residences. CERA requires CED manufacturers to financially 

support the recycling of collected CEDs. 

 

What are the covered electronic devices that manufacturers are responsible for recycling? 

Computers 

 Computer Monitors 

 Televisions 

 Printers 

FAX Machines 

Scanners 

 DVD Players 

DVD Recorders 

VCRs 

 Video Game Consoles 

Digital Converter Boxes 

Cable Receivers 

Satellite Receivers 

Electronic Keyboards 

Electronic Mice 

Small-Scale Servers 

Portable Digital Music 

Players (Memory Capability 

& Battery Powered) 

 
 

What about the electronic devices that the manufacturers do not have to recycle? 

Individual collectors may decide to accept non-CEDs, such as cell phones, microwaves, and other common 

household devices that have an electronic component. Collectors must separate any accepted non-CEDs from 

the collected CEDs before those items are removed from the collection site. Collectors may be charged a fee by 

their recycler to cover the cost of recycling non-CEDs.  

 

What is the benefit for a county to participate in the Illinois Electronics Recycling Program? 

The Illinois Electronics Recycling Program provides residents of participating counties an environmentally safe 

outlet for their unwanted CEDs and helps prevent open dumping of electronics.  

 

What does a county need to do to participate in the next program year? 

Submit a completed Opt-In Form to the Illinois EPA and the designated manufacturer representative by March 1 

of the preceding program year. The Opt-In Form should include a list of proposed collection locations that are 

likely to be available to support an electronics recycling site or event during the next program year. 

 

What is the county responsible for if it opts-in to the program? 

Participating counties are awarded a certain number of sites based upon population density, this is broken down 

below. The county will work with the manufacturer electronics recycling program contact to determine the 

specific collection sites or events for the upcoming program year. Section 1-45 of CERA outlines the additional 

responsibilities for counties that operate their own collection sites.  

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Population Density 

(individuals/sq. mile) 
Minimum # of Sites* 

0-249 1 

250-499 2 

500-749 3 

750-999 4 

1000-4999 5 

5000+ 15 

*One site is equivalent to four one-day events 

Note:  Municipality with over 1,000,000 residents 

receives 10 additional sites (located in that 

municipality) 

 

Will the county have to absorb any costs? 

This depends if the county acts as a collector. Counties that hire a third party to collect CEDs will likely have to 

absorb the third party’s costs. These expenses may be covered or minimized by the fees that collectors can 

charge for accepting televisions and monitors.  

Counties that serve as collectors are primarily responsible for staffing, equipment (forklift, forklift operator, 

pallet jack, etc.), and advertising.  Under these circumstances, electronics manufacturers provide the county 

packaging and shipment materials, bulk transportation, and recycling of collected CEDs.  The county may be 

assessed a prorated transportation fee if loads of transported CEDs do not average 18,000 pounds.  

Counties can keep costs low by working with local departments to staff sites or events. Contact your ILCSWMA 

Regional Representative to see if they have any other ideas that have worked in the past.  

ILCSWMA Northern Region Representative – Pete Adrian – padrian@swalco.org or 847-377-4952 

ILCSWMA Central Region Representative – Chad Braatz – chad.braatz@cityofmonmouth.com – 309-255-5075 

ILCSWMA Southern Region Representative – Andi Yancey – anyancey@co.madison.il.us – 618-296-4616 
 

Will counties be charged any fees by electronics recyclers? 

CERA does not include any recycler fees. The Illinois EPA recommends that counties contact their recycler to 

determine if they have an independent fee schedule.  

 

How many people are needed to staff a site or event? What if a county does not have any staff for these sites or 

events? 

Site staffing may vary based on county size.  Depending upon the population density within a county, a single 

staff member for a site may suffice. However, staffing a site is more predictable than an event. Event staffing 

can vary depending upon several factors, including frequency of event, weather, and advertising. Counties 

should discuss staffing numbers with their recycler or ILCSWMA Regional Representative as they may have 

experience with organizing electronics recycling events.  

Volunteers can be used if the county does not have enough staff for these sites or events. Volunteers should 

receive sufficient training that covers safety, sorting, and packaging prior to the event. Also, an individual with 

experience is recommended to provide expertise on the sorting, packaging and loading of the collected material. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

What are the benefits and limitations of selecting collection sites or one-day collection events?  

 Benefits Limitations 

Collection Site • Continued availability for resident 

drop-off 

• Predictable schedule 

• May operate with single employee 

• County control over recycler pick-

ups 

• Dedicated location 

• Dedicated staff 

One-day Event • Flexible location options (may use 

an empty parking lot) 

• Staff only required for one day 

• Limited availability to residents 

• Unpredictable (weather, number of 

incoming devices) 

• Less control over ability to meet 

18,000 gross pound transportation 

requirement 

 

What can a county expect after opting-in?  

Participating counties should be contacted by a manufacturer program contact after opting-in to the Illinois 

electronics recycling program. The manufacturer program contact will work with participating counties to 

identify the collection sites or events that will be listed in the manufacturer program plan and connect the 

counties with assigned recyclers.  These contacts should take place before July 1, when the manufacturer 

program plan is due to the Illinois EPA.   

 



2/9/22, 12:28 PM e-waste-infographic.png (612×792)

https://www2.illinois.gov/epa/topics/waste-management/PublishingImages/e-waste-infographic.png 1/1



Illinois Electronics Recycling Program 

_________________________________________

2023
Collection 

Summary 

Report 



1 
2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 

Introduction 
The Illinois Statewide Electronics Recycling Program 
began on January 1, 2012 under the Electronics Products 
Recycling & Reuse Act (EPRRA). On January 1, 2019, 
the Consumer Electronics Recycling Act (CERA) 
replaced EPRRA as the statutory framework for the 
statewide electronics recycling program. CERA 
incorporated many of the lessons learned from the 
historic program administration, including replacing 
numerical annual collection goals with minimum 
collection site requirements for participating Illinois 
counties.  

The statewide program offers an environmentally sound 
outlet for residential electronics and reduces the 
occurrence of open dumping which can be an 
environmental and economic burden for Illinois 
taxpayers. CERA requires manufacturers of covered 
electronic devices (CEDs), listed in Table 1, to register 
with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
(Agency) the brands they offer for sale at retail to 
Illinois residents. These manufacturers are required to fund packaging, transportation, and the 
subsequent recycling of CEDs collected at participating collection locations. The list of 
registered manufacturers can be found on the Agency’s website.  

Program Participation  
Illinois county participation plays an important role in program success. In total, 47 counties opt-
ed into the 2023 statewide program. Of those counties, 38 were able to run collection sites or 
hold collection events. Figure 1 displays a visual depiction of county participation. 
Approximately 86% of the Illinois population had the opportunity to use a CERA collection site 
or event during calendar year 2023.  

Collectors and recyclers are also vital components of the statewide program. Collectors involved 
in the program must register each program year with the Agency. In many cases, the 
participating county acts as their own designated collector. A county may also designate a third 
party to act as their collector. Collectors must register the collection sites and events with the 
Agency. These sites and events are published on the Agency’s website and added to our Beyond 
the Bin Map for public access.  

Recyclers involved in the statewide program are selected and assigned to participating counties 
by the manufacturers. In 2023, seven recyclers were selected to participate. Registered collectors 
and recyclers are responsible for handling CEDs in an environmentally safe manner in 
accordance with state law. CERA contemplates allowing additional collectors and recyclers 

https://epa.illinois.gov/topics/waste-management/materials-management/electronics-recycling1/manufacturers/registered-manufacturers.html
https://illinois-epa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=1e86d9a5913a4ca49fb0cfd64f1c2872
https://illinois-epa.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=1e86d9a5913a4ca49fb0cfd64f1c2872


2 
2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 

maintaining independent collection and recycling networks, which may not be funded by 
manufacturers.  

Collection Totals and Analysis  
CERA requires manufacturers to annually report to the Agency the amount of CEDs collected 
and recycled from participating collection sites and events by device category. The eight device 
categories are: 

1. Computers and small-scale servers 
2. Computer monitors 
3. Televisions 
4. Printers, scanners, fax machines 
5. DVD players/recorders, video players/recorders 
6. Video game consoles 
7. Digital converter boxes, cable and satellite receivers 
8. Keyboards, mice, portable digital music players 

 

Manufacturers reported that approximately ~9.94 million pounds of CEDs were collected from 
collection sites and events established under CERA in 2023. 

Figure 2 illustrates the total weight amount collected by CED category. A majority of the weight 
collected can be attributed to televisions and accounts for 56.8% of the total weight collected.  
Although televisions continue to become slimmer and lighter, they remain the heaviest consumer 
electronic. Additionally, tube televisions persist in Illinois homes despite their phaseout in the 
mid- to late 2000s. Television collection numbers are expected to remain high for the future due 
to their size, weight, and abundance. Computer monitor and Peripherals collection numbers are 
also expected to increase for the future due to the technology operational shift in response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  

The remaining device categories collected include: Printers/Scanners/Fax (12%), DVD and VCR 
Players/Recorders (10.3%), Computers and Small-Scale Servers (7%), Computer Peripherals 
(5.1%), Computer Monitors (7.4%), Cable/Satellite Equipment (1.1%), and Game Consoles 
(0.4%).  

In addition, the Agency is provided with a summary of CED weight collected by each county. A 
summary of collection weight by county can be found in Table 2. The top four counties by 
collected weight are Lake County, Will County, DuPage County, and Kane County. These 
counties represent the four out of the five largest Illinois counties by population size.  

CERA is among the first of several electronic recycling statutes enacted in the United States. 
Analysis of program effectiveness is on-going as more data is collected each year. Nine counties 
that had opt-ed into the program were ultimately unable to provide collection services during 
2023 due to the budgeting, infrastructure, and staffing restraints following the COVID-19 
pandemic reopening measures. Additionally, some new collection sites awaited construction and 
opening, and many collection events were postponed. Therefore, the 2023 program was 



3 
2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 

significantly impacted. Program year 2023 brought in 266 thousand fewer pounds when 
compared to program year 2022. A decrease in total weight collected was anticipated. Despite 
these challenges, local governments and recyclers worked diligently to re-open collection sites 
and hold collection events throughout the program year. This was largely achieved by taking 
additional measures to protect the health and safety of employees and residents so that this 
important program could continue to benefit local communities and the environment.  

Please contact Archana Uppuluri at (217) 524-9303 or email EPA.Recycling@illinois.gov if you 
have any questions related to this report or the Illinois Statewide Electronics Recycling Program.   

  

mailto:EPA.Recycling@illinois.gov


Will

Pike

Lee Cook

LaSalle

Ogle

McLean

Iroquois

Fulton

Henry

Knox

Adams

Bureau

Shelby

Wayne

Edgar

Livingston

Clay

Ford

Peoria

Logan

Lake

Clark

St Clair
Madison

Coles

White

Mason

Marion

Mercer

Perry

Greene

Cass

Kankakee

Clinton

Union

Bond

Carroll

DeWitt

Jersey
Fayette

Kane

Vermilion

Hancock

Piatt

Macoupin

Champaign

DeKalb

Macon
Sangamon

Christian

Tazewell

Warren

Morgan

Jasper

Jackson

Whiteside

Pope

McHenry

Jefferson

Randolph

Saline

Montgomery

Jo Daviess

Grundy

Woodford

Franklin

Stark

Monroe

Douglas

Schuyler

McDonough

Hamilton

Crawford

Washington

Stephenson

Effingham

Winnebago

Marshall

Brown

Scott

DuPage

Gallatin

Boone

Kendall

Moultrie

Menard

Richland

Williamson

Johnson

Rock Island

Lawrence

Henderson

Calhoun

Massac

Cumberland

Wabash

Pulaski

Hardin

Edwards

Alexander

Putnam

0 20 40 60 8010
Miles

Legend
2023 Opt-In Counties

2023 Non Opt-In Counties

Figure 1. Illinois County Participation
in 2023 under CERA

2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 4 



5 
2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 

 



6 
2023 Electronics Recycling Collection Summary Report | Illinois EPA 

Table 2. CED weight (lbs.) Collected by Illinois Counties in 2022 Under CERA 
 

 
* Collection numbers do not include non-opt-in counties, municipal programs outside of CERA, private 
programs, retailers, for profit businesses, or non-profits. 

County

Weight (lbs.) 
Collected by 

County (2023)
Bond 33,027
Boone 83,122
Bureau 30,764
Champaign 161,259
Cook 371,818
Dupage 1,290,024
Fulton 59,685
Grundy 39,201
Hancock 20,991
Henderson 7,213
Henry 53,469
Jackson 310,157
Jasper 35,330
Kane 984,862
Kankakee 125,076
Knox 66,846
Lake 1,649,020
LaSalle 108,129
Lee 53,497
Livingston 83,092
Macon 79,934
Madison 99,507
Marshall 41,620
McDonough 51,161
McHenry 441,616
McLean 517,262
Mercer 30,498
Ogle 115,583
Peoria 963,313
Perry 16,676
Schuyler 18,039
Vermillion 76,705
Warren 39,353
Wayne 14,707
Whiteside 174,776
Will 1,396,691
Winnebago 296,795
TOTAL 9,940,818



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 1/23

Illinois Compiled Statutes

Back to Article Listing  Public Acts  Search  Guide  Disclaimer  Printer-Friendly Version

Information maintained by the Legislative Reference Bureau
Updating the database of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) is an ongoing process. Recent laws
may not yet be included in the ILCS database, but they are found on this site as Public Acts soon
after they become law. For information concerning the relationship between statutes and Public Acts,
refer to the Guide.

Because the statute database is maintained primarily for legislative drafting purposes, statutory
changes are sometimes included in the statute database before they take effect. If the source note
at the end of a Section of the statutes includes a Public Act that has not yet taken effect, the version
of the law that is currently in effect may have already been removed from the database and you
should refer to that Public Act to see the changes made to the current law.

ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY
(415 ILCS 151/) Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

 
    (415 ILCS 151/Art. 1 heading)

ARTICLE 1. CONSUMER ELECTRONICS RECYCLING ACT
(This Article is scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-1)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-1. Short title. This Act may be cited as the Consumer
Electronics Recycling Act. References in this Article to "this
Act" mean this Article.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-3)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-3. Findings; purpose.
    (a) The General Assembly finds all of the following:
        (1) Many older and obsolete consumer electronic

    
products contain materials which may pose environmental and
health risks that should be managed.

        (2) Consumer electronic products contain metals,

    
plastics, glass, and other potentially valuable materials.
The reuse and recycling of these materials can conserve
natural resources and energy.

        (3) The recycling and reuse of the covered electronic

    
devices defined under this Act falls within the State of
Illinois' interest in the proper management of such
products.

        (4) Illinois counties and municipalities may face

    
significant cost burdens in collecting and processing
obsolete electronic products for reuse and recycling.

        (5) Manufacturers of electronic products should share

    
responsibility for the proper management of obsolete
consumer electronic products.

        (6) Illinois counties and municipalities, and the

  Home    Legislation & Laws    Senate    House    My Legislation    Site Map   

  Bills & Resolutions  

  Compiled Statutes  

  Public Acts  

  Legislative Reports  

  IL Constitution  

  Legislative Guide  

  Legislative Glossary  

 Search By Number
 (example: HB0001)

Go  Search Tips

Search By Keyword

Go
Search Tips

Advanced Search

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ChapterID=36&ActID=3816
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/search/iga_search.asp?scope=ilcs
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/using.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp#disclaimer
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?DocName=&ActID=3816&ChapterID=36&SeqStart=&SeqEnd=&Print=True
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/using.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/
https://www.ilga.gov/senate/
https://www.ilga.gov/house/
https://www.ilga.gov/mylegislation/
https://www.ilga.gov/sitemap.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/reports/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/commission/lrb/conmain.htm
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/guide.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/glossary.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/num_look_help.htm
https://www.ilga.gov/search/searchhelp.pdf
https://www.ilga.gov/search/Advanced_Search.asp?site=leg103
http://www.amberillinois.com/
http://www.amberillinois.com/
http://www.missingkids.com/
http://www.missingkids.com/


1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 2/23

    

citizens of Illinois, will benefit from the implementation
of a program or programs for the proper management of
obsolete consumer electronic products operated by
manufacturers that are actively overseen by the State.

        (7) It is the intent of the State to allow

    

manufacturers to coordinate their activities and programs
related to the proper management of obsolete covered
electronic devices as defined under this Act under strict
State supervision regardless of the effect the
manufacturers' actions or such coordination will have on
competition.

        (8) It is in the best interest of the State to

    

promote the coordination of manufacturer activities and
programs related to the proper management of obsolete
covered electronic devices through participation in a
manufacturer clearinghouse as set forth in the Act.

    (b) The purpose of this Act is to further the interest of
the State of Illinois in the proper management of obsolete
consumer electronic products by setting forth procedures by
which the recycling and processing for reuse of covered
electronic devices will be accomplished by manufacturers for
those counties and municipalities that wish to opt-in to
electronic product manufacturer-run recycling and processing
programs that are approved and overseen by the State of
Illinois.
(Source: P.A. 100-592, eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-5)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-5. Definitions. As used in this Act:
    "Agency" means the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.
    "Best practices" means standards for collecting and
preparing items for shipment and recycling. "Best practices" may
include standards for packaging for transport, load size,
acceptable load contamination levels, non-CED items included in
a load, and other standards as determined under Section 1-85 of
this Act. "Best practices" shall consider the desired intent to
preserve existing collection programs and relationships when
possible.
    "Collector" means a person who collects residential CEDs at
any program collection site or one-day collection event and
prepares them for transport.
    "Computer", often referred to as a "personal computer" or
"PC", means a desktop or notebook computer as further defined
below and used only in a residence, but does not mean an
automated typewriter, electronic printer, mobile telephone,
portable hand-held calculator, portable digital assistant (PDA),
MP3 player, or other similar device. "Computer" does not include
computer peripherals, commonly known as cables, mouse, or
keyboard. "Computer" is further defined as either:
        (1) "Desktop computer", which means an electronic,
    magnetic, optical, electrochemical, or other high-speed data

processing device performing logical, arithmetic, or storage
functions for general purpose needs that are met through
interaction with a number of software programs contained
therein, and that is not designed to exclusively perform a
specific type of logical, arithmetic, or storage function or
other limited or specialized application. Human interface
with a desktop computer is achieved through a stand-alone
keyboard, stand-alone monitor, or other display unit, and a
stand-alone mouse or other pointing device, and is designed
for a single user. A desktop computer has a main unit that
is intended to be persistently located in a single location,
often on a desk or on the floor. A desktop computer is not



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 3/23

designed for portability and generally utilizes an external
monitor, keyboard, and mouse with an external or internal
power supply for a power source. Desktop computer does not
include an automated typewriter or typesetter; or

        (2) "Notebook computer", which means an electronic,

    

magnetic, optical, electrochemical, or other high-speed data
processing device performing logical, arithmetic, or storage
functions for general purpose needs that are met through
interaction with a number of software programs contained
therein, and that is not designed to exclusively perform a
specific type of logical, arithmetic, or storage function or
other limited or specialized application. Human interface
with a notebook computer is achieved through a keyboard,
video display greater than 4 inches in size, and mouse or
other pointing device, all of which are contained within the
construction of the unit that comprises the notebook
computer; supplemental stand-alone interface devices
typically can also be attached to the notebook computer.
Notebook computers can use external, internal, or batteries
for a power source. Notebook computer does not include a
portable hand-held calculator, or a portable digital
assistant or similar specialized device. A notebook computer
has an incorporated video display greater than 4 inches in
size and can be carried as one unit by an individual. A
notebook computer is sometimes referred to as a laptop
computer.

        (3) "Tablet computer", which means an electronic,

    

magnetic, optical, electrochemical, or other high-speed data
processing device performing logical, arithmetic, or storage
functions for general purpose needs that are met through
interaction with a number of software programs contained
therein, and that is not designed to exclusively perform a
specific type of logical, arithmetic, or storage function or
other limited or specialized application. Human interface
with a tablet computer is achieved through a touch screen
and video display screen greater than 6 inches in size (all
of which are contained within the unit that comprises the
tablet computer). Tablet computers may use an external or
internal power source. "Tablet computer" does not include a
portable hand-held calculator, a portable digital assistant,
or a similar specialized device.

    "Computer monitor" means an electronic device that is a
cathode-ray tube or flat panel display primarily intended to
display information from a computer and is used only in a
residence.
    "County recycling coordinator" means the individual who is
designated as the recycling coordinator for a county in a waste
management plan developed pursuant to the Solid Waste Planning
and Recycling Act.
    "Covered electronic device" or "CED" means any computer,
computer monitor, television, printer, electronic keyboard,
facsimile machine, videocassette recorder, portable digital
music player that has memory capability and is battery powered,
digital video disc player, video game console, electronic mouse,
scanner, digital converter box, cable receiver, satellite
receiver, digital video disc recorder, or small-scale server
sold at retail. "Covered electronic device" does not include any
of the following:
        (1) an electronic device that is a part of a motor

    
vehicle or any component part of a motor vehicle assembled
by or for a vehicle manufacturer or franchised dealer,
including replacement parts for use in a motor vehicle;

        (2) an electronic device that is functionally or



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 4/23

    

physically part of a larger piece of equipment or that is
taken out of service from an industrial, commercial
(including retail), library checkout, traffic control,
kiosk, security (other than household security),
governmental, agricultural, or medical setting, including
but not limited to diagnostic, monitoring, or control
equipment; or

        (3) an electronic device that is contained within a

    

clothes washer, clothes dryer, refrigerator, refrigerator
and freezer, microwave oven, conventional oven or range,
dishwasher, room air conditioner, dehumidifier, water pump,
sump pump, or air purifier. To the extent allowed under
federal and State laws and regulations, a CED that is being
collected, recycled, or processed for reuse is not
considered to be hazardous waste, household waste, solid
waste, or special waste.

    "Covered electronic device category" or "CED category" means
each of the following 8 categories of residential CEDs:
        (1) computers and small-scale servers;
        (2) computer monitors;
        (3) televisions;
        (4) printers, facsimile machines, and scanners;
        (5) digital video disc players, digital video disc
    recorders, and videocassette recorders;
        (6) video game consoles;
        (7) digital converter boxes, cable receivers, and
    satellite receivers; and
        (8) electronic keyboards, electronic mice, and

    
portable digital music players that have memory capability
and are battery powered.

    "Manufacturer" means a person, or a successor in interest to
a person, under whose brand or label a CED is or was sold at
retail. For any CED sold at retail under a brand or label that
is licensed from a person who is a mere brand owner and who does
not sell or produce a CED, the person who produced the CED or
his or her successor in interest is the manufacturer. For any
CED sold at retail under the brand or label of both the retail
seller and the person that produced the CED, the person that
produced the CED, or his or her successor in interest, is the
manufacturer.
    "Manufacturer clearinghouse" means an entity that prepares
and submits a manufacturer e-waste program plan to the Agency,
and oversees the manufacturer e-waste program, on behalf of a
group of 2 or more manufacturers cooperating with one another to
collectively establish and operate an e-waste program for the
purpose of complying with this Act and that collectively
represent at least 50% of the manufacturers' total obligations
under this Act for a program year.
    "Manufacturer e-waste program" means any program
established, financed, and operated by a manufacturer,
individually or collectively as part of a manufacturer
clearinghouse, to transport and subsequently recycle, in
accordance with the requirements of this Act, residential CEDs
collected at program collection sites and one-day collection
events.
    "Municipal joint action agency" means a municipal joint
action agency created under Section 3.2 of the Intergovernmental
Cooperation Act.
    "One-day collection event" means a one-day event used as a
substitute for a program collection site pursuant to Section 1-
15 of this Act.
    "Person" means an individual, partnership, co-partnership,
firm, company, limited liability company, corporation,
association, joint stock company, trust, estate, political



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 5/23

subdivision, State agency, or any other legal entity; or a legal
representative, agent, or assign of that entity. "Person"
includes a unit of local government.
    "Printer" means desktop printers, multifunction printer
copiers, and printer/fax combinations taken out of service from
a residence that are designed to reside on a work surface, and
include various print technologies, including without limitation
laser and LED (electrographic), ink jet, dot matrix, thermal,
and digital sublimation, and "multi-function" or "all-in-one"
devices that perform different tasks, including without
limitation copying, scanning, faxing, and printing. Printers do
not include floor-standing printers, printers with optional
floor stand, point of sale (POS) receipt printers, household
printers such as a calculator with printing capabilities or
label makers, or non-stand-alone printers that are embedded into
products that are not CEDs.
    "Program collection site" means a physical location that is
included in a manufacturer e-waste program and at which
residential CEDs are collected and prepared for transport by a
collector during a program year in accordance with the
requirements of this Act. Except as otherwise provided in this
Act, "program collection site" does not include a retail
collection site.
    "Program year" means a calendar year. The first program year
is 2019.
    "Recycler" means any person who transports or subsequently
recycles residential CEDs that have been collected and prepared
for transport by a collector at any program collection site or
one-day collection event.
    "Recycling" has the meaning provided under Section 3.380 of
the Environmental Protection Act. "Recycling" includes any
process by which residential CEDs that would otherwise be
disposed of or discarded are collected, separated, or processed
and returned to the economic mainstream in the form of raw
materials or products.
    "Residence" means a dwelling place or home in which one or
more individuals live.
    "Residential covered electronic device" or "residential CED"
means any covered electronic device taken out of service from a
residence in the State.
    "Retail collection site" means a private sector collection
site operated by a retailer collecting on behalf of a
manufacturer.
    "Retailer" means a person who first sells, through a sales
outlet, catalogue, or the Internet, a covered electronic device
at retail to an individual for residential use or any permanent
establishment primarily where merchandise is displayed, held,
stored, or offered for sale to the public.
    "Sale" means any retail transfer of title for consideration
of title including, but not limited to, transactions conducted
through sales outlets, catalogs, or the Internet or any other
similar electronic means. "Sale" does not include financing or
leasing.
    "Small-scale server" means a computer that typically uses
desktop components in a desktop form designed primarily to serve
as a storage host for other computers. To be considered a small-
scale server, a computer must: be designed in a pedestal, tower,
or other form that is similar to that of a desktop computer so
that all data processing, storage, and network interfacing is
contained within one box or product; be designed to be
operational 24 hours per day and 7 days per week; have very
little unscheduled downtime, such as on the order of hours per
year; be capable of operating in a simultaneous multi-user
environment serving several users through networked client



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 6/23

units; and be designed for an industry-accepted operating system
for home or low-end server applications.
    "Television" means an electronic device that contains a
cathode-ray tube or flat panel screen the size of which is
greater than 4 inches when measured diagonally and is intended
to receive video programming via broadcast, cable, satellite,
Internet, or other mode of video transmission or to receive
video from surveillance or other similar cameras.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; 100-
592, eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-10)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-10. Manufacturer e-waste program.
    (a) For program year 2019 and each program year thereafter,
each manufacturer shall, individually or collectively as part of
a manufacturer clearinghouse, provide a manufacturer e-waste
program to transport and subsequently recycle, in accordance
with the requirements of this Act, residential CEDs collected
at, and prepared for transport from, the program collection
sites and one-day collection events included in the program
during the program year.
    (b) Each manufacturer e-waste program must include, at a
minimum, the following:
        (1) satisfaction of the convenience standard
    described in Section 1-15 of this Act;
        (2) instructions for designated county recycling

    
coordinators and municipal joint action agencies to annually
file notice to participate in the program;

        (3) transportation and subsequent recycling of the

    
residential CEDs collected at, and prepared for transport
from, the program collection sites and one-day collection
events included in the program during the program year; and

        (4) submission of a report to the Agency, by March 1,
    2020, and each March 1 thereafter, which includes:
            (A) the total weight of all residential CEDs

        
transported from program collection sites and one-day
collection events throughout the State during the
preceding program year by CED category;

            (B) the total weight of residential CEDs

        
transported from all program collection sites and one-
day collection events in each county in the State during
the preceding program year by CED category; and

            (C) the total weight of residential CEDs

        
transported from all program collection sites and one-
day collection events in each county in the State during
that preceding program year and that was recycled.

    (c) Each manufacturer e-waste program shall make the
instructions required under paragraph (2) of subsection (b)
available on its website by December 1, 2017, and the program
shall provide to the Agency a hyperlink to the website for
posting on the Agency's website.
    (d) Nothing in this Act shall prevent a manufacturer from
accepting, through a manufacturer e-waste program, residential
CEDs collected through a curbside or drop-off collection program
that is operated pursuant to a residential franchise collection
agreement authorized by Section 11-19-1 of the Illinois
Municipal Code or Section 5-1048 of the Counties Code between a
third party and a unit of local government located within a
county or municipal joint action agency that has elected to
participate in a manufacturer e-waste program.
    (e) A collection program operated in accordance with this
Section shall:
        (1) meet the collector responsibilities under



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 7/23

    

subsections (a), (a-5), (d), (e), and (g) under Section 1-45
and require certification on the bill of lading or similar
manifest from the unit of local government, the third party,
and the county or municipal joint action agency that elected
to participate in the manufacturer e-waste program that the
CEDs were collected, to the best of their knowledge, from
residential consumers in the State of Illinois;

        (2) comply with the audit provisions under subsection
    (g) of Section 1-30;
        (3) locate any drop-off location where CEDs are

    
collected on property owned by a unit of local government;
and

        (4) have signage at any drop-off location indicating
    only residential CEDs are accepted for recycling.
    Manufacturers of CEDs are not financially responsible for
transporting and consolidating CEDs collected from a collection
program's drop-off location. Any drop-off location used in 2019
must have been identified by the county or municipal joint
action agency in the written notice of election to participate
in the manufacturer e-waste program in accordance with Section
1-20 by March 1, 2018. Any drop-off location operating in 2020
or in subsequent years must be identified by the county or
municipal joint action agency in the annual written notice of
election to participate in a manufacturer e-waste program in
accordance with Section 1-20 to be eligible for the subsequent
program year.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; 100-
592, eff. 6-22-18; 100-1165, eff. 6-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19.)
 

    (415 ILCS 151/1-15)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-15. Convenience standard for program collection sites
and one-day collection events.
    (a) Beginning in 2019 each manufacturer e-waste program for
a program year must include, at a minimum, program collection
sites in the following quantities in counties that elect to
participate in the manufacturer e-waste program for the program
year:
        (1) one program collection site in each county that

    
has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is less than 250 individuals per square mile;

        (2) two program collection sites in each county that

    

has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is greater than or equal to 250 individuals per
square mile but less than 500 individuals per square mile;

        (3) three program collection sites in each county

    

that has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is greater than or equal to 500 individuals per
square mile but less than 750 individuals per square mile;

        (4) four program collection sites in each county that

    

has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is greater than or equal to 750 individuals per
square mile but less than 1,000 individuals per square mile;

        (5) five program collection sites in each county that

    

has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is greater than or equal to 1,000 individuals
per square mile but less than 5,000 individuals per square
mile; and



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 8/23

        (6) fifteen program collection sites in each county

    

that has elected to participate in the manufacturer e-waste
program for the program year and that has a population
density that is greater than or equal to 5,000 individuals
per square mile.

    For purposes of this Section, county population densities
shall be based on the entire county's population density,
regardless of whether a municipality or municipal joint action
agency in the county participates in a manufacturer e-waste
program.
    If a municipality with a population of over 1,000,000
residents elects to participate in a manufacturer e-waste
program for a program year, then the program shall provide 10
additional program collection sites for the program year to be
located in that municipality, and the program collection sites
required under paragraph (6) of subsection (a) of this Section
shall be located outside of the municipality.
    If a municipal joint action agency elects to participate in
a manufacturer e-waste program for a program year, it shall
receive, for that year, a population-based pro rata share of the
program collection sites that would be granted to the county in
which the municipal joint action agency is located if the county
were to elect to participate in the program for that year,
rounded to the nearest whole number.
    A designated county recycling coordinator may elect to
operate more than the required minimum number of collection
sites.
    (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this Section, any
county, municipality, or municipal joint action agency that
elects to participate in a manufacturer e-waste program may
enter into a written agreement with the operators of any
manufacturer e-waste program in order to do one or more of the
following:
        (1) to decrease the number of program collection

    
sites in the county, municipality, or territorial boundary
of the municipal joint action agency for the program year;

        (2) to substitute a program collection site in the

    

county, municipality, or territorial boundary of the
municipal joint action agency with either (i) 4 one-day
collection events or (ii) a different number of such events
as may be provided in the written agreement;

        (3) to substitute the location of a program

    
collection site in the county, municipality, or territorial
boundary of the municipal joint action agency for the
program year with another location;

        (4) to substitute the location of a one-day

    
collection in the county, municipality, or territorial
boundary of the municipal joint action agency with another
location; or

        (5) to use, with the agreement of the applicable

    
retailer, a retail collection site as a program collection
site.

    An agreement made pursuant to paragraph (1) or (2) of this
subsection (b) shall be reduced to writing and included in the
manufacturer e-waste program plan as required under subsection
(a) of Section 1-25 of this Act.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-20)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-20. Election to participate in manufacturer e-waste
programs. Beginning with program year 2019, a county, a
municipal joint action agency, or a municipality with a
population of more than 1,000,000 residents may elect to



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 9/23

participate in a manufacturer e-waste program by filing with the
manufacturer e-waste program and the Agency, on or before March
1, 2018, and on or before March 1 of each year thereafter for
the upcoming program year, a written notice of election to
participate in the program. The written notice shall include a
list of proposed collection locations likely to be available and
appropriate to support the program, and may include locations
already providing similar collection services. The written
notice may include a list of registered recyclers that the
county, municipal joint action agency, or municipality would
prefer using for its collection sites or one-day events.
    Counties, municipal joint action agencies, and
municipalities with a population of more than 1,000,000
residents may contract with registered collectors to operate
collection sites. Eligible registered collectors are not limited
to private companies and non-government organizations.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-25)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-25. Manufacturer e-waste program plans.
    (a) By September 1, 2018 for program year 2019, and by July
1 of each year thereafter, each manufacturer shall, individually
or through a manufacturer clearinghouse, submit to the Agency a
manufacturer e-waste program plan, which includes, at a minimum,
the following:
        (1) the contact information for the individual who

    
will serve as the point of contact for the manufacturer e-
waste program;

        (2) the identity of each county that has elected to

    
participate in the manufacturer e-waste program during the
program year;

        (3) for each county, the location of each program

    
collection site and one-day collection event included in the
manufacturer e-waste program for the program year;

        (4) the collector operating each program collection

    
site and one-day collection event included in the
manufacturer e-waste program for the program year;

        (5) the recyclers that manufacturers plan to use

    

during the program year to transport and subsequently
recycle residential CEDs under the program, with the updated
list of recyclers to be provided to the Agency no later than
December 1 preceding each program year;

        (6) an explanation of any deviation by the program

    

from the standard program collection site distribution set
forth in subsection (a) of Section 1-15 of this Act for the
program year, along with copies of all written agreements
made pursuant to paragraphs (1) or (2) of subsection (b) of
Section 1-15 for the program year; and

        (7) if a group of 2 or more manufacturers are

    

participating in a manufacturer clearinghouse, certification
that the methodology used for allocating responsibility for
the transportation and recycling of residential CEDs by
manufacturers participating in the manufacturer
clearinghouse for the program year will be in compliance
with the allocation methodology established under Section 1-
84.5 of this Act.

    (b) Within 60 days after receiving a manufacturer e-waste
program plan, the Agency shall review the plan and approve the
plan or disapprove the plan.
        (1) If the Agency determines that the program
    collection sites and one-day collection events specified in

the plan will satisfy the convenience standard set forth in
Section 1-15 of this Act, then the Agency shall approve the



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 10/23

manufacturer e-waste program plan and provide written
notification of the approval to the individual who serves as
the point of contact for the manufacturer. The Agency shall
make the approved plan available on the Agency's website.

        (2) If the Agency determines the plan will not

    

satisfy the convenience standard set forth in Section 1-15
of this Act, then the Agency shall disapprove the
manufacturer e-waste program plan and provide written
notification of the disapproval and the reasons for the
disapproval to the individual who serves as the point of
contact for the manufacturer. Within 30 days after the date
of disapproval, the manufacturer shall submit a revised
manufacturer e-waste program plan that addresses the
deficiencies noted in the Agency's disapproval.

    (c) Manufacturers shall assume financial responsibility for
carrying out their e-waste program plans, including, but not
limited to, financial responsibility for providing the packaging
materials necessary to prepare shipments of collected
residential CEDs in compliance with subsection (e) of Section 1-
45, as well as financial responsibility for bulk transportation
and recycling of collected residential CEDs.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; 100-
592, eff. 6-22-18; 100-1165, eff. 6-1-19; 101-81, eff. 7-12-19.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-30)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-30. Manufacturer registration.
    (a) By April 1, 2018, and by April 1 of each year thereafter
for the upcoming program year, beginning with program year 2019,
each manufacturer who sells CEDs in the State must register with
the Agency by: (i) submitting to the Agency a $5,000
registration fee; and (ii) completing and submitting to the
Agency the registration form prescribed by the Agency.
Information on the registration form shall include, without
limitation, all of the following:
        (1) a list of all of the brands and labels under

    
which the manufacturer's CEDs are sold or offered for sale
in the State; and

        (2) the total weights, by CED category, of CEDs sold

    
in the United States to individuals, under any of the
manufacturer's brands or labels, during the calendar year
that is 2 years before the applicable program year.

    If, during a program year, any of the manufacturer's CEDs
are sold or offered for sale in the State under a brand that is
not listed in the manufacturer's registration, then, within 30
days after the first sale or offer for sale under that brand,
the manufacturer must amend its registration to add the brand.
All registration fees collected by the Agency pursuant to this
Section shall be deposited into the Solid Waste Management Fund.
    (b) The Agency shall post on its website a list of all
registered manufacturers.
    (c) Beginning in program year 2019, a manufacturer whose
CEDs are sold or offered for sale in this State for the first
time on or after April 1 of a program year must register with
the Agency within 30 days after the date the CEDs are first sold
or offered for sale in the State.
    (d) Beginning in program year 2019, manufacturers shall
ensure that only recyclers that have registered with the Agency
and meet the recycler standards set forth in Section 1-40 are
used to transport or recycle residential CEDs collected at any
program collection site or one-day collection event.
    (e) Beginning in program year 2019, no manufacturer may sell
or offer for sale a CED in this State unless the manufacturer is
registered and operates a manufacturer program either



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 11/23

individually or as part of the manufacturer clearinghouse as
required in this Act.
    (f) Beginning in program year 2019, no manufacturer may sell
or offer for sale a CED in this State unless the manufacturer's
brand name is permanently affixed to, and is readily visible on,
the CED.
    (g) In accordance with a contract or agreement with a
county, municipality, or municipal joint action agency that has
elected to participate in a manufacturer e-waste program under
this Act, manufacturers may, either individually or through the
manufacturer clearinghouse, audit program collection sites and
proposed program collection sites for compliance with the terms
and conditions of the contract or agreement. Audits shall be
conducted during normal business hours, and a manufacturer or
its designee shall provide reasonable notice to the collection
site in advance of the audit. Audits of all program collection
sites may include, among other things, physical site location
visits and inspections and review of processes, procedures,
technical systems, reports, and documentation reasonably related
to the collecting, sorting, packaging, and recycling of
residential CEDs in compliance with this Act.
    (h) Nothing in this Act shall require a manufacturer or
manufacturer e-waste program to collect, transport, or recycle
any CEDs other than residential CEDs, or to accept for transport
or recycling any pallet or bulk container of residential CEDs
that has not been prepared by the collector for shipment in
accordance with subsection (e) of Section 1-45.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; 100-
592, eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-33)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-33. Manufacturer clearinghouse.
    (a) A manufacturer e-waste program plan submitted by a
manufacturer clearinghouse may take into account and incorporate
individual plans or operations of one or more manufacturers that
are participating in the manufacturer clearinghouse.
    (b) If a manufacturer clearinghouse allocates responsibility
to manufacturers for manufacturers' transportation and recycling
of residential CEDs during a program year as part of a
manufacturer e-waste program plan, then the manufacturer
clearinghouse shall identify the allocation methodology in its
plan submission to the Agency pursuant to Section 1-25 of this
Act for review and approval. Any allocation of responsibility
among manufacturers for the collection of covered electronic
devices shall be in accordance with the allocation methodology
established pursuant to Section 1-84.5 of this Act.
    (c) A manufacturer clearinghouse shall have no authority to
enforce manufacturer compliance with the requirements of this
Act, including compliance with the allocation methodology set
forth in a manufacturer e-waste program plan, but shall, upon
prior notice to the manufacturer, refer any potential non-
compliance to the Agency. A manufacturer clearinghouse may
develop and implement policies and procedures that exclude from
participation in the manufacturer clearinghouse any
manufacturers found by the Illinois Pollution Control Board or a
court of competent jurisdiction to have failed to comply with
this Act.
(Source: P.A. 100-592, eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-35)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-35. Retailer responsibilities.
    (a) Beginning in program year 2019, no retailer who first



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 12/23

sells, through a sales outlet, catalogue, or the Internet, a CED
at retail to an individual for residential use may sell or offer
for sale any CED in or for delivery into this State unless:
        (1) the CED is labeled with a brand, and the label is
    permanently affixed and readily visible; and
        (2) the manufacturer is registered with the Agency at
    the time the retailer purchases the CED.
    (b) A retailer shall be considered to have complied with
paragraphs (1) and (2) of subsection (a) if:
        (1) a manufacturer registers with the Agency within

    
30 days of a retailer taking possession of the
manufacturer's CED;

        (2) a manufacturer's registration expires and the

    
retailer ordered the CED prior to the expiration, in which
case the retailer may sell the CED, but only if the sale
takes place within 180 days of the expiration; or

        (3) a manufacturer is no longer conducting business

    
and has no successor in interest, in which case the retailer
may sell any orphan CED ordered prior to the discontinuation
of business.

    (c) Retailers shall not be considered collectors under the
convenience standard and retail collection sites shall not be
considered a collection site for the purposes of the convenience
standard pursuant to Sections 1-10, 1-15, and 1-25 unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by the (i) retailer, (ii)
operators of the manufacturer e-waste program, and (iii) the
applicable county, municipal joint action agency, or
municipality. If retailers agree to participate in a county
program collection site, then the retailer collection site does
not have to collect all CEDs or register as a collector.
    (d) Manufacturers may use retail collection sites for
satisfying some or all of their obligations pursuant to Sections
1-10, 1-15 and 1-25.
    (e) Nothing in this Act shall prohibit a retailer from
collecting a fee for each CED collected.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-40)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-40. Recycler responsibilities.
    (a) By January 1, 2019, and by January 1 of each year
thereafter for that program year, beginning with program year
2019, each recycler must register with the Agency by (i)
submitting to the Agency a $3,000 registration fee and (ii)
completing and submitting to the Agency the registration form
prescribed by the Agency. The registration form prescribed by
the Agency shall include, without limitation, the address of
each location where the recycler manages residential CEDs
collected through a manufacturer e-waste program and the
certification required under subsection (d) of this Section. All
registration fees collected by the Agency pursuant to this
Section shall be deposited into the Solid Waste Management Fund.
    (a-5) The Agency may deny a registration under this Section
if the recycler or any employee or officer of the recycler has a
history of:
        (1) repeated violations of federal, State, or local

    
laws, regulations, standards, or ordinances related to the
collection, recycling, or other management of CEDs;

        (2) conviction in this State or another state of any
    crime which is a felony under the laws of this State, or

conviction of a felony in a federal court; or conviction in
this State or another state or federal court of any of the
following crimes: forgery, official misconduct, bribery,
perjury, or knowingly submitting false information under any



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 13/23

environmental law, regulation, or permit term or condition;
or

        (3) gross carelessness or incompetence in handling,

    
storing, processing, transporting, disposing, or otherwise
managing CEDs.

    (b) The Agency shall post on the Agency's website a list of
all registered recyclers.
    (c) Beginning in program year 2019, no person may act as a
recycler of residential CEDs for a manufacturer's e-waste
program unless the recycler is registered with the Agency as
required under this Section.
    (d) Beginning in program year 2019, recyclers must, as a
part of their annual registration, certify compliance with all
of the following requirements:
        (1) Recyclers must comply with federal, State, and

    

local laws and regulations, including federal and State
minimum wage laws, specifically relevant to the handling,
processing, and recycling of residential CEDs and must have
proper authorization by all appropriate governing
authorities to perform the handling, processing, and
recycling.

        (2) Recyclers must implement the appropriate measures

    
to safeguard occupational and environmental health and
safety, through the following:

            (A) environmental health and safety training of

        
personnel, including training with regard to material
and equipment handling, worker exposure, controlling
releases, and safety and emergency procedures;

            (B) an up-to-date, written plan for the

        
identification and management of hazardous materials;
and

            (C) an up-to-date, written plan for reporting and

        
responding to exceptional pollutant releases, including
emergencies such as accidents, spills, fires, and
explosions.

        (3) Recyclers must maintain (i) commercial general

    

liability insurance or the equivalent corporate guarantee
for accidents and other emergencies with limits of not less
than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate and
(ii) pollution legal liability insurance with limits not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for companies engaged
solely in the dismantling activities and $5,000,000 per
occurrence for companies engaged in recycling.

        (4) Recyclers must maintain on file documentation

    

that demonstrates the completion of an environmental health
and safety audit completed and certified by a competent
internal and external auditor annually. A competent auditor
is an individual who, through professional training or work
experience, is appropriately qualified to evaluate the
environmental health and safety conditions, practices, and
procedures of the facility. Documentation of auditors'
qualifications must be available for inspection by Agency
officials and third-party auditors.

        (5) Recyclers must maintain on file proof of workers'
    compensation and employers' liability insurance.
        (6) Recyclers must provide adequate assurance, such

    
as bonds or corporate guarantees, to cover environmental and
other costs of the closure of the recycler's facility,
including cleanup of stockpiled equipment and materials.

        (7) Recyclers must apply due diligence principles to

    
the selection of facilities to which components and
materials, such as plastics, metals, and circuit boards,
from residential CEDs are sent for reuse and recycling.

        (8) Recyclers must establish a documented



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 14/23

    

environmental management system that is appropriate in level
of detail and documentation to the scale and function of the
facility, including documented regular self-audits or
inspections of the recycler's environmental compliance at
the facility.

        (9) Recyclers must use the appropriate equipment for

    

the proper processing of incoming materials as well as
controlling environmental releases to the environment. The
dismantling operations and storage of residential CED
components that contain hazardous substances must be
conducted indoors and over impervious floors. Storage areas
must be adequate to hold all processed and unprocessed
inventory. When heat is used to soften solder and when
residential CED components are shredded, operations must be
designed to control indoor and outdoor hazardous air
emissions.

        (10) Recyclers must establish a system for

    

identifying and properly managing components, such as
circuit boards, batteries, cathode-ray tubes, and mercury
phosphor lamps, that are removed from residential CEDs
during disassembly. Recyclers must properly manage all
hazardous and other components requiring special handling
from residential CEDs consistent with federal, State, and
local laws and regulations. Recyclers must provide visible
tracking, such as hazardous waste manifests or bills of
lading, of hazardous components and materials from the
facility to the destination facilities and documentation,
such as contracts, stating how the destination facility
processes the materials received. No recycler may send,
either directly or through intermediaries, hazardous wastes
to solid non-hazardous waste landfills or to non-hazardous
waste incinerators for disposal or energy recovery. For the
purpose of these guidelines, smelting of hazardous wastes to
recover metals for reuse in conformance with all applicable
laws and regulations is not considered disposal or energy
recovery.

        (11) Recyclers must use a regularly implemented and

    

documented monitoring and record-keeping program that tracks
total inbound residential CED material weights and total
subsequent outbound weights to each destination, injury and
illness rates, and compliance with applicable permit
parameters including monitoring of effluents and emissions.
Recyclers must maintain contracts or other documents, such
as sales receipts, suitable to demonstrate: (i) the
reasonable expectation that there is a downstream market or
uses for designated electronics, which may include recycling
or reclamation processes such as smelting to recover metals
for reuse; and (ii) that any residuals from recycling or
reclamation processes, or both, are properly handled and
managed to maximize reuse and recycling of materials to the
extent practical.

        (12) Recyclers must employ industry-accepted

    

procedures for the destruction or sanitization of data on
hard drives and other data storage devices. Acceptable
guidelines for the destruction or sanitization of data are
contained in the National Institute of Standards and
Technology's Guidelines for Media Sanitation or those
guidelines certified by the National Association for
Information Destruction.

        (13) No recycler may employ prison labor in any

    
operation related to the collection, transportation, and
recycling of CEDs. No recycler may employ any third party
that uses or subcontracts for the use of prison labor.

    (e) Each recycler shall, during each calendar year,
transport from each site that the recycler uses to manage



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 15/23

residential CEDs not less than 75% of the total weight of
residential CEDs present at the site during the preceding
calendar year. Each recycler shall maintain on-site records that
demonstrate compliance with this requirement and shall make
those records available to the Agency for inspection and
copying.
    (f) Nothing in this Act shall prevent a person from acting
as a recycler independently of a manufacturer e-waste program.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-45)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-45. Collector responsibilities.
    (a) By January 1, 2019, and by January 1 of each year
thereafter for that program year, beginning with program year
2019, a person acting as a collector under a manufacturer e-
waste program shall register with the Agency by completing and
submitting to the Agency the registration form prescribed by the
Agency. The registration form prescribed by the Agency must
include, without limitation, the address of each location at
which the collector accepts residential CEDs.
    (a-5) The Agency may deny a registration under this Section
if the collector or any employee or officer of the collector has
a history of:
        (1) repeated violations of federal, State, or local

    
laws, regulations, standards, or ordinances related to the
collection, recycling, or other management of CEDs;

        (2) conviction in this State or another state of any

    

crime which is a felony under the laws of this State, or
conviction of a felony in a federal court; or conviction in
this State or another state or federal court of any of the
following crimes: forgery, official misconduct, bribery,
perjury, or knowingly submitting false information under any
environmental law, regulation, or permit term or condition;
or

        (3) gross carelessness or incompetence in handling,

    
storing, processing, transporting, disposing, or otherwise
managing CEDs.

    (b) The Agency shall post on the Agency's website a list of
all registered collectors.
    (c) Manufacturers and recyclers acting as collectors shall
so indicate on their registration under Section 1-30 or 1-40 of
this Act.
    (d) By March 1, 2020 and every March 1 thereafter, each
collector that operates a program collection site or one-day
collection event shall report, to the Agency and to the
manufacturer e-waste program, the total weight, by CED category,
of residential CEDs transported from the program collection site
or one-day collection event during the previous program year.
    (e) Each collector that operates a program collection site
or one-day event shall ensure that the collected residential
CEDs are sorted and loaded in compliance with local, State, and
federal law. In addition, at a minimum, the collector shall also
comply with the following requirements:
        (1) residential CEDs must be accepted at the program

    
collection site or one-day collection event unless otherwise
provided in this Act;

        (2) residential CEDs shall be kept separate from
    other material and shall be:
            (A) packaged in a manner to prevent breakage;
        and
            (B) loaded onto pallets and secured with

        
plastic wrap or in pallet-sized bulk containers prior to
shipping; and



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 16/23

            (C) on average per collection site 18,000 pounds

        
per shipment, and if not then the recycler may charge
the collector a prorated charge on the shortfall in
weight, not to exceed $600;

        (3) residential CEDs shall be sorted into the
    following categories:
            (A) computer monitors and televisions

        
containing a cathode-ray tube, other than televisions
with wooden exteriors;

            (B) computer monitors and televisions
        containing a flat panel screen;
            (C) all covered televisions that are
        residential CEDs;
            (D) computers;
            (E) all other residential CEDs; and
            (F) any electronic device that is not part of the

        

manufacturer program that the collector has arranged to
have picked up with residential CEDs and for which a
financial arrangement has been made to cover the
recycling costs outside of the manufacturer program;

        (4) containers holding the CEDs must be structurally
    sound for transportation; and
        (5) each shipment of residential CEDs from a program

    

collection site or one-day collection event shall include a
collector-prepared bill of lading or similar manifest, which
describes the origin of the shipment and the number of
pallets or bulk containers of residential CEDs in the
shipment.

    (f) Except as provided in subsection (g) of this Section,
each collector that operates a program collection site or one-
day collection event during a program year shall accept all
residential CEDs that are delivered to the program collection
site or one-day collection event during the program year.
    (g) No collector that operates a program collection site or
one-day collection event shall:
        (1) accept, at the program collection site or one-day

    
collection event, more than 7 residential CEDs from an
individual at any one time;

        (2) scrap, salvage, dismantle, or otherwise

    
disassemble any residential CED collected at a program
collection site or one-day collection event;

        (3) deliver to a manufacturer e-waste program,

    
through its recycler, any CED other than a residential CED
collected at a program collection site or one-day collection
event; or

        (4) deliver to a person other than the manufacturer

    
e-waste program or its recycler, a residential CED collected
at a program collection site or one-day collection event.

    (h) Beginning in program year 2019, registered collectors
participating in county supervised collection programs may
collect a fee for each desktop computer monitor or television
accepted for recycling to cover costs for collection and
preparation for bulk shipment or to cover costs associated with
the requirements of subsection (e) of Section 1-45.
    (i) Nothing in this Act shall prevent a person from acting
as a collector independently of a manufacturer e-waste program.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-50)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-50. Penalties.
    (a) Except as otherwise provided in this Act, any person who
violates any provision of this Act is liable for a civil penalty



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 17/23

of $7,000 per violation, provided that the penalty for failure
to register or pay a fee under this Act shall be double the
applicable registration fee.
    (b) The penalties provided for in this Section may be
recovered in a civil action brought in the name of the people of
the State of Illinois by the State's Attorney of the county in
which the violation occurred or by the Attorney General. Any
penalties collected under this Section in an action in which the
Attorney General has prevailed shall be deposited in the
Environmental Protection Trust Fund, to be used in accordance
with the provisions of the Environmental Protection Trust Fund
Act.
    (c) The Attorney General or the State's Attorney of a county
in which a violation occurs may institute a civil action for an
injunction, prohibitory or mandatory, to restrain violations of
this Act or to require such actions as may be necessary to
address violations of this Act.
    (d) A fine imposed by administrative citation pursuant to
Section 1-55 of this Act shall be $1,000 per violation, plus any
hearing costs incurred by the Illinois Pollution Control Board
and the Agency. Such fines shall be made payable to the
Environmental Protection Trust Fund to be used in accordance
with the Environmental Protection Trust Fund Act.
    (e) The penalties and injunctions provided in this Act are
in addition to any penalties, injunctions, or other relief
provided under any other law. Nothing in this Act bars a cause
of action by the State for any other penalty, injunction, or
other relief provided by any other law.
    (f) A knowing violation of subsections (a), (b), or (c) of
Section 1-83 of this Act by anyone other than a residential
consumer is a petty offense punishable by a fine of $500. A
knowing violation of subsections (a), (b), or (c) of Section 1-
83 by a residential consumer is a petty offense punishable by a
fine of $25 for a first violation; however, a subsequent
violation by a residential consumer is a petty offense
punishable by a fine of $50.
    (g) Any person who knowingly makes a false, fictitious, or
fraudulent material statement, orally or in writing, to the
Agency, related to or required by this Act or any rule adopted
under this Act commits a Class 4 felony, and each such statement
or writing shall be considered a separate Class 4 felony. A
person who, after being convicted under this subsection (g),
violates this subsection (g) a second or subsequent time,
commits a Class 3 felony.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-55)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-55. Administrative citations.
    (a) Any violation of a registration requirement in Sections
1-30, 1-40, or 1-45 of this Act, any violation of the reporting
requirement in paragraph (4) of subsection (b) of Section 1-10
of this Act, and any violation of a plan submission requirement
in Section 1-25 of this Act shall be enforceable by
administrative citation issued by the Agency. Whenever Agency
personnel shall, on the basis of direct observation, determine
that any person has violated any of those provisions, the Agency
may issue and serve, within 60 days after the observed
violation, an administrative citation upon that person. Each
citation shall be served upon the person named or the person's
authorized agent for service of process and shall include the
following:
        (1) a statement specifying the provisions of this Act
    that the person has violated;



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 18/23

        (2) the penalty imposed under subsection (d) of
    Section 1-50 of this Act for that violation; and
        (3) an affidavit by the personnel observing the

    
violation, attesting to their material actions and
observations.

    (b) If the person named in the administrative citation fails
to petition the Illinois Pollution Control Board for review
within 35 days after the date of service, then the Board shall
adopt a final order, which shall include the administrative
citation and findings of violation as alleged in the citation
and shall impose the penalty specified in subsection (d) of
Section 1-50 of this Act.
    (c) If a petition for review is filed with the Board to
contest an administrative citation issued under this Section,
then the Agency shall appear as a complainant at a hearing
before the Board to be conducted pursuant to subsection (d) of
this Section at a time not less than 21 days after notice of the
hearing has been sent by the Board to the Agency and the person
named in the citation. In those hearings, the burden of proof
shall be on the Agency. If, based on the record, the Board finds
that the alleged violation occurred, then the Board shall adopt
a final order, which shall include the administrative citation
and findings of violation as alleged in the citation, and shall
impose the penalty specified in subsection (d) of Section 1-50
of this Act. However, if the Board finds that the person
appealing the citation has shown that the violation resulted
from uncontrollable circumstances, then the Board shall adopt a
final order that makes no finding of violation and imposes no
penalty.
    (d) All hearings under this Section shall be held before a
qualified hearing officer, who may be attended by one or more
members of the Board, designated by the Chairman. All of these
hearings shall be open to the public, and any person may submit
written statements to the Board in connection with the subject
of these hearings. In addition, the Board may permit any person
to offer oral testimony. Any party to a hearing under this
Section may be represented by counsel, make oral or written
argument, offer testimony, cross-examine witnesses, or take any
combination of those actions. All testimony taken before the
Board shall be recorded stenographically. The transcript so
recorded and any additional matter accepted for the record shall
be open to public inspection, and copies of those materials
shall be made available to any person upon payment of the actual
cost of reproducing the original.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-60)
    Sec. 1-60. (Repealed).
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17. Repealed by P.A. 100-362,
eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-65)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-65. Relation to other State laws. Nothing in this Act
affects the validity or application of any other law of this
State, or regulations adopted thereunder.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-75)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-75. CRT retrievable storage. In order to further the
policy of the State to reduce the environmental and economic
impacts of transporting and managing cathode-ray tube (CRT)
glass, and to support (i) the beneficial use of CRTs in



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 19/23

accordance with beneficial use determinations issued by the
Agency under Section 22.54 of the Environmental Protection Act
and (ii) the storage of CRTs in retrievable storage cells at
locations within the State for future recovery; for the purpose
of this Act, a CRT shall be considered to be recycled if:
        (1) all recyclable components are removed from the
    device; and
        (2) the glass from the device is either:
            (A) beneficially reused in accordance with a

        
beneficial use determination issued under Section 22.54
of the Environmental Protection Act; or

            (B) placed in a storage cell, in a manner that

        
allows it to be retrieved in the future, at a waste
disposal site that is permitted to accept the glass.

(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-80)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-80. Collection of CEDs outside of the manufacturer e-
waste program.
    (a) Nothing in this Act prohibits a waste hauler from
entering into a contractual agreement with a unit of local
government to establish a collection program for the recycling
or reuse of CEDs, including services such as curbside
collection, home pick-up, drop-off locations, or similar methods
of collection.
    (b) Nothing in this Act shall prohibit a person from
establishing an e-waste program independently of a manufacturer
e-waste program.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-83)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-83. Landfill ban.
    (a) Beginning January 1, 2019, no person may knowingly cause
or allow the mixing of a CED, or any other computer, computer
monitor, printer, television, electronic keyboard, facsimile
machine, videocassette recorder, portable digital music player,
digital video disc player, video game console, electronic mouse,
scanner, digital converter box, cable receiver, satellite
receiver, digital video disc recorder, or small-scale server
with municipal waste that is intended for disposal at a
landfill.
    (b) Beginning January 1, 2019, no person may knowingly cause
or allow the disposal of a CED or any other computer, computer
monitor, printer, television, electronic keyboard, facsimile
machine, videocassette recorder, portable digital music player,
digital video disc player, video game console, electronic mouse,
scanner, digital converter box, cable receiver, satellite
receiver, digital video disc recorder, or small-scale server in
a sanitary landfill.
    (c) Beginning January 1, 2019, no person may knowingly cause
or allow the mixing of a CED, or any other computer, computer
monitor, printer, television, electronic keyboard, facsimile
machine, videocassette recorder, portable digital music player,
digital video disc player, video game console, electronic mouse,
scanner, digital converter box, cable receiver, satellite
receiver, digital video disc recorder, or small-scale server
with waste that is intended for disposal by burning or
incineration.
    (d) Beginning January 1, 2019, no person may knowingly cause
or allow the burning or incineration of a CED, or any other
computer, computer monitor, printer, television, electronic
keyboard, facsimile machine, videocassette recorder, portable



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 20/23

digital music player, digital video disc player, video game
console, electronic mouse, scanner, digital converter box, cable
receiver, satellite receiver, digital video disc recorder, or
small-scale server.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-84)
    Sec. 1-84. (Repealed).
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17. Repealed by P.A. 100-592,
eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-84.5)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-84.5. Manufacturer clearinghouse; allocation of
financial responsibility for the transportation and recycling of
covered electronic devices.
    (a) As used in this Section, unless the context otherwise
requires:
    "Adjusted total proportional responsibility" means the
percentage calculated for each participating manufacturer for a
program year under subsection (f) of this Section.
    "Market share" means the percentage that results from
dividing:
        (1) the product of the total weight reported for a

    

CED category by a manufacturer, for the calendar year 2
years before the applicable program year, under paragraph
(2) of subsection (a) of Section 1-30 of this Act,
multiplied by the population adjustment factor for that
year; by

        (2) the product of the total weight reported for that

    

CED category by all manufacturers, for the calendar year 2
years before the applicable program year, under paragraph
(2) of subsection (a) of Section 1-30 of this Act,
multiplied by the population adjustment factor for that
year.

    "Participating manufacturer" means a manufacturer that a
manufacturer clearinghouse has listed, pursuant to subsection
(c) of this Section, as a participant in the manufacturer
clearinghouse for a program year.
    "Population adjustment factor" means the percentage that
results when (i) the population of Illinois, as reported in the
most recent federal decennial census, is divided by (ii) the
population of the United States, as reported in the most recent
federal decennial census.
    "Return share" means the percentage, by weight, of each CED
category that is returned to the program collection sites and
one-day collection events operated by or on behalf of either a
manufacturer clearinghouse or one or more of its participating
manufacturers during the calendar year 2 years before the
applicable program year, as reported to the Agency under Section
1-10 of this Act; except that, for program year 2019 and program
year 2020, "return share" means the percentage, by weight, of
each CED category that is estimated by the manufacturer
clearinghouse to be returned to those sites and events during
the applicable program year, as reported to the Agency under
subsection (b) of this Section.
    "Unadjusted total proportional responsibility" means the
percentage calculated for each participating manufacturer under
subsection (e) of this Section.
    (b) By March 1, 2018, each manufacturer clearinghouse shall
provide the Agency with a statement of the return share for each
CED category for program year 2019, and by March 1, 2019, each
manufacturer clearinghouse shall provide the Agency with a
statement of the return share for each CED category for program



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 21/23

year 2020.
    (c) If a manufacturer clearinghouse submits to the Agency a
manufacturer e-waste program plan under Section 1-25 of this
Act, then the manufacturer clearinghouse shall include in the
plan a list of manufacturers that have agreed to participate in
the manufacturer clearinghouse for the upcoming program year.
    (d) By November 1, 2018, and each November 1 thereafter, the
Agency shall provide each manufacturer clearinghouse with a
statement of the unadjusted total proportional responsibility
and adjusted total proportional responsibility of each of its
participating manufacturers for the upcoming program year.
    (e) For each program year, the Agency shall calculate the
unadjusted total proportional responsibility of each
participating manufacturer as follows:
        (1) For each CED category, the Agency shall multiply

    

(i) the participating manufacturer's market share for the
CED category by (ii) the return share for the CED category,
to arrive at the category-specific proportional
responsibility of the participating manufacturer for the CED
category.

        (2) The Agency shall then, for each participating

    

manufacturer, sum the category-specific proportional
responsibilities of the participating manufacturer
calculated under paragraph (1), to arrive at the
participating manufacturer's unadjusted total proportional
responsibility.

    (f) If the sum of all unadjusted total proportional
responsibilities of a manufacturer clearinghouse's participating
manufacturers for a program year accounts for less than 100% of
the return share for that year, then the Agency shall divide the
unallocated return share among participating manufacturers in
proportion to their unadjusted total proportional
responsibilities, to arrive at the adjusted total proportional
responsibility for each participating manufacturer.
    (g) A manufacturer may use retail collection sites to
satisfy some or all of the manufacturer's responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, the manufacturer's transportation
and recycling of collected residential CEDs pursuant to any
allocation methodology established under this Act. Nothing in
this Act shall prevent a manufacturer from using retail
collection sites to satisfy any percentage of the manufacturer's
total responsibilities, including, but not limited to, the
manufacturer's transportation and recycling of collected
residential CEDs pursuant to any allocation methodology
established under this Act or by administrative rule.
(Source: P.A. 100-592, eff. 6-22-18.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-85)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-85. Advisory Electronics Recycling Task Force.
    (a) There is hereby created an Advisory Electronics
Recycling Task Force, which shall consist of the following 10
members, to be appointed by the Director of the Agency:
        (1) two individuals who are representatives of county
    recycling programs;
        (2) two individuals who are representatives of
    recycling companies;
        (3) two individuals who are representatives from the
    manufacturing industry;
        (4) one individual who is a representative of a
    statewide trade association representing retailers;
        (5) one individual who is a representative of a
    statewide trade association representing manufacturers;
        (6) one individual who is a one representative of a



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 22/23

    
statewide trade association representing waste disposal
companies; and

        (7) one individual who is a representative of a
    national trade association representing manufacturers.
    Members of the Task Force shall be appointed as soon as
practicable after the effective date of this amendatory Act of
the 100th General Assembly, shall serve for 2-year terms, and
may be reappointed. Vacancies shall be filled by the Director of
the Agency for the remainder of the current term. Members shall
serve voluntarily and without compensation.
    Members shall elect from their number a chairperson, who
shall also serve a 2-year term. The Task Force shall meet
initially at the call of the Director of the Agency and
thereafter at the call of the chairperson. A simple majority of
the members of the Task Force shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, and all actions and recommendations of
the Task Force must be approved by a simple majority of its
members.
    (b) By November 1, 2018, and each November 1 thereafter, the
Task Force shall submit, to the Agency for posting on the
Agency's website, a list of agreed-to best practices to be used
at program collection sites and one-day collection events in the
following program year. When establishing best practices, the
Task Force shall consider the desired intent to preserve
existing collection programs and relationships when possible.
    (c) The Agency shall provide the Task Force with
administrative support as necessary.
(Source: P.A. 100-362, eff. 8-25-17; 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-86)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-86. Public Reporting. Each year, the Agency shall
post on its website the information it receives pursuant to
subdivision (b)(4) of Section 1-10 showing the amounts of
residential CEDs being collected and recycled in each county in
each program year. The Agency shall notify the General Assembly
of the availability of this information.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/1-87)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-87. Antitrust. A manufacturer or manufacturer
clearinghouse acting in accordance with the provisions of this
Act may negotiate, enter into contracts with, or conduct
business with each other and with any other entity developing,
implementing, operating, participating in, or performing any
other activities directly related to a manufacturer e-waste
program approved pursuant to this Act, and the manufacturer,
manufacturer clearinghouse, and any entity developing,
implementing, operating, participating in, or performing any
other activities related to a manufacturer e-waste program
approved pursuant to this Act are not subject to damages,
liability, or scrutiny under federal antitrust law or the
Illinois Antitrust Act, regardless of the effects of their
actions on competition. The supervisory activities described in
this Act are sufficient to confirm that activities of the
manufacturers, manufacturer clearinghouse, and any entity
developing, implementing, operating, participating in, or
performing any other activities related to a manufacturer e-
waste program that is approved pursuant to Section 1-25 are
authorized and actively supervised by the State.
(Source: P.A. 100-592, eff. 6-22-18.)



1/26/24, 3:02 PM 415 ILCS 151/ Consumer Electronics Recycling Act.

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs5.asp?ActID=3816&ChapterID=36 23/23

    (415 ILCS 151/1-90)
    (Section scheduled to be repealed on December 31, 2026)
    Sec. 1-90. Repeal. This Article is repealed on December 31,
2026.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

 
    (415 ILCS 151/Art. 5 heading)

ARTICLE 5. AMENDATORY PROVISIONS
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/5-5)
    Sec. 5-5. The State Finance Act is amended by repealing
Section 5.716.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 1-1-20.)

    (415 ILCS 151/5-10)
    Sec. 5-10. (Amendatory provisions; text omitted).
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; text omitted.)

    (415 ILCS 151/5-15)
    Sec. 5-15. (Amendatory provisions; text omitted).
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17; text omitted.)

 
    (415 ILCS 151/Art. 98 heading)

ARTICLE 98. SEVERABILITY
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/98-5)
    Sec. 98-5. Severability. The provisions of this Act are
severable under Section 1.31 of the Statute on Statutes.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

 
    (415 ILCS 151/Art. 99 heading)

ARTICLE 99. EFFECTIVE DATE
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

    (415 ILCS 151/99-999)
    Sec. 99-999. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon
becoming law, except that Section 5-5 takes effect on January 1,
2020.
(Source: P.A. 100-433, eff. 8-25-17.)

Top

Home | Legislation & Laws | House | Senate | My Legislation | Disclaimers | Email

  This site is maintained for the Illinois General Assembly by the
Legislative Information System, 705 Stratton Building, Springfield, Illinois 62706
Contact ILGA Webmaster

 

https://www.ilga.gov/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/
https://www.ilga.gov/house/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/senate/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/mylegislation/default.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/disclaimer.asp
https://www.ilga.gov/contact.asp
mailto:webmaster@ilga.gov?subject=Email%20from%20ILGA%20Web


Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Monday, March 3, 2025 
Committee: Economic Development 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 

County Board Office 
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | wincoil.gov  

Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov 

Document Title:  Resolution Allocating Host Fee Funds To The Rockford Metropolitan 
Exposition, Auditorium And Office Building Authority D/B/A The Rockford 
Area Venues And Entertainment Authority (RAVE) For Capital Improvement 
Projects And Infrastructure At The BMO Center  

County Code:  
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $400,000 per 

year for 5 years 
If not, explain funding source: 
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: 41700-45700 Budget Impact: $2,000,000 over 5 years 

Background Information: 
The BMO (~142,000 Sq Ft facility) is owned and operated by the Rockford Area Venues 

and Entertainment Authority (RAVE), which the County appoints 3 of the 9 members to its Board. 
The County in collaboration with the City of Rockford has long supported the BMO Center (BMO) 
for nearly 20 years to cultivate economic activities downtown, such as, but not limited to; music 
concerts, ice skating shows, motor sports, youth tournaments, and many other performing events 
in addition to the Rockford IceHogs. The County allocated $460,000 per year for 20 years to assist 
in the renovation and operating cost of the facility in 2007 (2007-CR-006). The Chicago 
Blackhawks are extending their lease agreement for the Rockford IceHogs at the BMO for an 
additional 10 years. This extension has come with a new request for $400,000 per year for 5 years, 
totaling $2 million starting during County Fiscal Year 2027 (Oct. 1, 2026 through Sept. 30, 2027) 
for capital improvements projects and infrastructure at the BMO. The funding assistance is 
specifically for certain capital improvements to the BMO to meet the agreement standards, so that 
it can be comparable to other AHL facilities, however it also helps in the general 
attraction/retention of other entertainment performances at the BMO. RAVEs economic impact in 
regards to employment for FY-2024 (July 1st – June 30th) gross wages were just over $3,500,000 
for approximately 350 employees, about half are full-time. 

Recommendation: 
Winnebago County Administration supports economic drivers within the region that have 

economic impact by creating/sustaining employees and local tax dollar generation. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Staff can follow-up with the RAVE as requested by Committee and/or County Board. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov


Sponsored by:  John Sweeney   County Board Meeting: March 13, 2025 

            
 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2025 CR _________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING HOST FEE FUNDS TO THE ROCKFORD 
METROPOLITAN EXPOSITION, AUDITORIUM AND OFFICE BUILDING 

AUTHORITY D/B/A THE ROCKFORD AREA VENUES AND ENTERTAINMENT 
AUTHORITY (RAVE) FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE AT THE BMO CENTER  
 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 authorizes units 

of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not 
prohibited by law or by ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 200/1 et seq., as 

amended, authorizes public agencies to exercise any power or powers, privileges or authority 
which may be exercised by such public agency individually to be exercised and enjoyed jointly 
with any other public agency in the State of Illinois 

 
WHEREAS, Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium And Office Building 

Authority doing business as Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (hereinafter, 
“RAVE”) is an Illinois municipal corporation and unit of local government that is authorized to 
plan, sponsor, hold, and arrange cultural, educational, theatrical, sports, trade and scientific 
exhibits, shows and events within the corporate boundaries of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(hereinafter, “County”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the County is an Illinois unit of local government that supports economic 

growth through tourism for the region, which the BMO Center located at 300 Elm Street, 
Rockford, Illinois (hereinafter, “BMO”) has been doing for over forty years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the non-for-profit RAVE, operates an arena for the purposes described 

above and has requested financial assistance from the County to support with capital 
improvements and infrastructure needs to the BMO; and 

 
WHEREAS, the request is a collaborative effort with the City of Rockford, who is 

looking to allocate nine million dollars ($9,000,000.00) over ten (10) years from 2026 through 
2036; and  
 



 
WHEREAS, the Chicago Blackhawks’ American Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford 

IceHogs, who are anchor tenants of the BMO are seeking to extend their agreements for their use 
of the arena, and as such certain updates are needed to maintain effective operational functions; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, this agreement shall be null and void if the Chicago Blackhawks’ American 

Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford IceHogs were to end their agreement with utilizing the 
BMO; and 

 
WHEREAS, the BMO offers numerous other entertainment options, including but not 

limited to music concerts, ice skating shows, monster truck rallies, youth tournaments, and 
many other performing events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County authorizes the allocation of four hundred thousand dollars 

($400,000.00) from the Host Fee Fund per year for five (5) years, totaling two million dollars 
($2,000,000.00) to RAVE specifically for capital improvements and infrastructure needs at the 
BMO starting in the County’s fiscal year 2027 (October 1, 2026 – September 30, 2027); and 

 
WHEREAS, said County allocation shall be in effect as long as the City of Rockford 

contributes to the BMO or up to a maximum of five (5) years as outlined within this document or 
whichever ends first; and 
 

WHEREAS, RAVE has agreed that the County may designate at least one County 
representative to serve on, and attend meetings of, RAVE’s “Capital Projects and Infrastructure 
Working Group” (hereinafter, “CPIWG”), so that the County can be included with how the 
funds are to be expended; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois hereby authorizes County Administration to allocate four hundred thousand 
dollars ($400,000.00) from the Host Fee Fund per year for five (5) years, totaling two million 
dollars ($2,000,000.00) to the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office 
Building Authority d/b/a the Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (hereinafter, 
“RAVE”) specifically for capital improvements and infrastructure needs at the BMO starting in 
the County’s fiscal year 2027 (October 1, 2026 – September 30, 2027); and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the schedule for transferring Host Fee Funds shall 
follow the below table, entitled, “Host Fee Schedule for BMO Capital Improvements and 
Infrastructure Needs” as long as the City of Rockford contributes to the BMO during this stated 
period of time in said Host Fee Schedule; and 

 
 
 
 
 

 



Host Fee Schedule for BMO Capital Improvements and Infrastructure Needs 

Year 
Fiscal 
Year County Fiscal Dates Amount ($) 

1 FY-2027 October 1, 2026 - September 30, 2027  $    400,000  
2 FY-2028 October 1, 2027 - September 30, 2028  $    400,000  
3 FY-2029 October 1, 2028 - September 30, 2029  $    400,000  
4 FY-2030 October 1, 2029 - September 30, 2030  $    400,000  

5 FY-2031 October 1, 2030 - September 30, 2031  $    400,000  
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement shall be null and void if the Chicago 
Blackhawks’ American Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford IceHogs were to end their 
agreement with utilizing the BMO; and 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County shall designate one individual to 

serve on, and attend meetings, of, RAVE’s, “Capital Projects and Infrastructure Working 
Group” (hereinafter, “CPIWG”), so that the County can be included with how the funds are to 
be expended (with such individual being designated for the duration of this agreement by the 
County Board Chairman with advice and consent of the County Board), and that RAVE shall 
permit such individual’s service on the CPIWG as a condition of receiving the funds described 
in this Resolution. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Chief Operating Officer, County Chief Financial Officer, County Administrator, the County 
Auditor, and the County Finance Director. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 

RAY THOMPSON  RAY THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Sponsored by:  John Sweeney   County Board Meeting: March 13, 2025 

            
 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2025 CR _________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING HOST FEE FUNDS TO THE ROCKFORD 
METROPOLITAN EXPOSITION, AUDITORIUM AND OFFICE BUILDING 

AUTHORITY D/B/A THE ROCKFORD AREA VENUES AND ENTERTAINMENT 
AUTHORITY (RAVE) FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE AT THE BMO CENTER  
 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 authorizes units 

of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any manner not 
prohibited by law or by ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 200/1 et seq., as 

amended, authorizes public agencies to exercise any power or powers, privileges or authority 
which may be exercised by such public agency individually to be exercised and enjoyed jointly 
with any other public agency in the State of Illinois 

 
WHEREAS, Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium And Office Building 

Authority doing business as Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (hereinafter, 
“RAVE”) is an Illinois municipal corporation and unit of local government that is authorized to 
plan, sponsor, hold, and arrange cultural, educational, theatrical, sports, trade and scientific 
exhibits, shows and events within the corporate boundaries of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
(hereinafter, “County”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the County is an Illinois unit of local government that supports economic 

growth through tourism for the region, which the BMO Center located at 300 Elm Street, 
Rockford, Illinois (hereinafter, “BMO”) has been doing for over forty years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the non-for-profit RAVE, operates an arena for the purposes described 

above and has requested financial assistance from the County to support with capital 
improvements and infrastructure needs to the BMO; and 

 
WHEREAS, the request is a collaborative effort with the City of Rockford, who is 

looking to allocate nine million dollars ($9,000,000.00) over ten (10) years from 2026 through 
2036; and  
 



 
WHEREAS, the Chicago Blackhawks’ American Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford 

IceHogs, who are anchor tenants of the BMO are seeking to extend their agreements for their use 
of the arena, and as such certain updates are needed to maintain effective operational functions; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, this agreement shall be null and void if the Chicago Blackhawks’ American 

Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford IceHogs were to end their agreement with utilizing the 
BMO; and 

 
WHEREAS, the BMO offers numerous other entertainment options, including but not 

limited to music concerts, ice skating shows, monster truck rallies, youth tournaments, and 
many other performing events; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County authorizes the allocation of four hundred thousand dollars 

($400,000.00) from the Host Fee Fund per year for five (5) years, totaling two million dollars 
($2,000,000.00) to RAVE specifically for capital improvements and infrastructure needs at the 
BMO starting in the County’s fiscal year 2027 (October 1, 2026 – September 30, 2027); and 

 
WHEREAS, said County allocation shall be in effect as long as the City of Rockford 

contributes to the BMO or up to a maximum of five (5) years as outlined within this document or 
whichever ends first; and 
 

WHEREAS, RAVE has agreed that the County may designate at least one County 
representative to serve on, and attend meetings of, RAVE’s “Capital Projects and Infrastructure 
Working Group” (hereinafter, “CPIWG”), so that the County can be included with how the 
funds are to be expended; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois hereby authorizes County Administration to allocate four hundred thousand 
dollars ($400,000.00) from the Host Fee Fund per year for five (5) years, totaling two million 
dollars ($2,000,000.00) to the Rockford Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office 
Building Authority d/b/a the Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (hereinafter, 
“RAVE”) specifically for capital improvements and infrastructure needs at the BMO starting in 
the County’s fiscal year 2027 (October 1, 2026 – September 30, 2027); and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the schedule for transferring Host Fee Funds shall 
follow the below table, entitled, “Host Fee Schedule for BMO Capital Improvements and 
Infrastructure Needs” as long as the City of Rockford contributes to the BMO during this stated 
period of time in said Host Fee Schedule; and 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



Host Fee Schedule for BMO Capital Improvements and Infrastructure Needs 

Year 
Fiscal 
Year County Fiscal Dates Amount ($) 

1 FY-2027 October 1, 2026 - September 30, 2027  $    400,000  
2 FY-2028 October 1, 2027 - September 30, 2028  $    400,000  
3 FY-2029 October 1, 2028 - September 30, 2029  $    400,000  
4 FY-2030 October 1, 2029 - September 30, 2030  $    400,000  

5 FY-2031 October 1, 2030 - September 30, 2031  $    400,000  
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement shall be null and void if the Chicago 
Blackhawks’ American Hockey League affiliate, the Rockford IceHogs were to end their 
agreement with utilizing the BMO; and 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County shall designate one individual to 

serve on, and attend meetings, of, RAVE’s, “Capital Projects and Infrastructure Working 
Group” (hereinafter, “CPIWG”), so that the County can be included with how the funds are to 
be expended (with such individual being designated for the duration of this agreement by the 
County Board Chairman with advice and consent of the County Board), and that RAVE shall 
permit such individual’s service on the CPIWG as a condition of receiving the funds described 
in this Resolution. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
  

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Chief Operating Officer, County Chief Financial Officer, County Administrator, the County 
Auditor, and the County Finance Director. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIR 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 

RAY THOMPSON  RAY THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 
 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Winnebago County  
General Economic Development Project Form 

 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 
Organization / Business Name:  

Contact Person (1) :  Position:  

Phone #: (            )              -              E-mail:                                                      @ 

Contact Person (2):  Position:  

Phone #: (            )              -              E-mail:                                                      @ 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Location / Address:  

Parcel 
Identification 
Number(s) 
PIN(s): 

___ ___ - ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ - ___ ___ ___ 

 Type of Development: Existing  
Square Footage (SF): 

Proposed / Additional 
Square Footage (SF): 

TOTAL  
SQUARE FOOTAGE (SF): 

New Construction SF SF SF 

Addition / Expansion SF SF SF 

Remodel SF SF SF 

Other SF SF SF 

If other, 
explain:  

Project Timeframe (Estimated): 

Start Date:  End Date:  

Jobs 

 Full-Time Equivalent 
(FTE) #: 

Part-Time Equivalent 
(PTE) #: Temporary #: TOTAL #: 

Construction 
Jobs:     

Newly 
Created Jobs:     

Retained 
Jobs:     

TOTAL #:     

 

 

 

 



Total Project Cost: $ 

INVESTMENT 
NAME(S) of PARTICIPATING PARTNERS Amount ($) Status Date Type (s) of Funding / Involvement 
Developer: 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 
Requested 

Anticipated 
Approved 

  

Municipality: 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (1): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (2): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Tax Body (3): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Other (1): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Other (2): 
$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ 

Requested 
Anticipated 

Approved 
  

Requested Project Gap Assistance from the County? 
County: 

$ __ __ __ , __ __ __ , __ __ __ Requested   

 



Winnebago County  
General Economic Development Project Form 

 

Summary / Description of Project: 
 

Expected 
Outcomes:  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Applicant  Name Printed Applicant Signature Date 
** By signing this application, I hereby attest that this application and any accompanying documents are true, 

accurate, and correct to the best of my understating. ** 
 







High‐Priority Capital Projects



High‐Priority Capital Projects







Rockford IceHogs &
Chicago Blackhawks 
Partnership

• Dedicated to Rockford in Winnebago County with a 15‐year lease.

• In FY23, they invested $180,570 in 20 local organizations supporting 
the County’s youth, economically disadvantaged families, individuals 
with disabilities, small business owners, veterans, first responders, and 
more.

• Contract obligations are in place to bring the BMO Center up to the 
same standards as other AHL facilities – we’re nearly there!



Why invest? 

• Economic Impact

• Job Creation

• Increased Revenue

• Tourism  Attraction

• Increased Foot Traffic

• Community Events

• Cultural Enrichment

• Attracting Investment























OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department of behalf of DoIT 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 6, 2025 
Board Date:  March 13, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Countywide Camera Project Additional Hardware 

Using CIP 2025 Funds  
Budget Information 

Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $500,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $500,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER        By: $157,859 
Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46586-C2509   Descriptor: CIP 2025 Funds 
Budget Impact? $294,146 

        $47,995 
   Total: $342,141 

Background Information:  The Countywide Security Cameras and Integrator System project was 
approved by the County Board on December 12.  As a part of this project, a budget was 
established to handle the County and DoIT provided hardware such as switches, racks and 
additional networking for our increased infrastructure to expand our security cameras county-
wide. 

For the first part of this project, IFB 25B-2390 was issued and five bids were received. Heartland 
Business Systems being the lowest bid (See Resolution Exhibit A). There is additional computer 
hardware that DoIT needs to purchase and implement, that is required for the integration of the 
camera project countywide.  This purchase order would be issued for $294,146.  

For the second part of this project, quotes were obtained to purchase the following items through 
CDW-G and IT Savvy: 

Vendor Amount 
IT Savvy $      8,793 
IT Savvy $    33,451 
CDW -G $      5,751 

Total $    47,995 

This request represents $342,141 of the Winnebago County DoIT hardware costs. As a part of this 
project, we do anticipate additional hardware needs countywide. We will continue to bring 
forward purchases throughout this project as a part of this $500,000 allocated budget. 

Recommended By:  Dan Magers, Chief Information Officer  

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Heartland Business Systems. 



County Board Meeting:  March 13, 2025 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION  AWARDING COUNTYWIDE CAMERA PROJECT ADDITIONAL HARDWARE  USING CIP 2025 FUNDS 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

          

        WHEREAS, the Countywide Security Cameras and Integrator project was approved 
by the County Board on December 12, 2024 in order to proceed with implementation 
DoIT needed to provide hardware updated countywide; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for bid 25B-2390 in February to secure 
the necessary IT equipment to implement for compatibility with the security camera 
project and five bid submissions were received; and, 

 

WHEREAS, additionally the County will continue to provide hardware tied to 
infrastructure updates as apart of this budgeted item as additional needs are determined 
the committee will be updated regarding the budgeted spend; and, 

 
 

 

           WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

 

HEARTLAND BUISNESS SYSTEMS 
5400 PATTON DRIVE, SUITE 4B 

LISLE, ILLINOIS 60532 
 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order in the amount of 
$294,146, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, with HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS, 5400 
PATTON DRIVE, SUITE 4B, LISLE, ILLINOIS 60532. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director of 
Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



 
                           Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Heartland Business Systems 

Lisle, IL.      
Montel Technologies, LLC 

Loves Park, IL.      

Entre Computer Solutions 

Machesney Park, IL.      

CDW-G      

Vernon Hills, IL.

ClearConnect    

Cottonwood, ID.

DESCRIPTIONS QUANTITY TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE

15

HPE Aruba Networking X372 54VDC 1050W 110‑240VAC 

Power Supply 
30

$18,635.40 $25,623.60 $24,901.50 $24,503.70 $25,925.01 

Included Included $5,900.00 Included Included

$294,145.68 $500,390.24 $492,187.75 $414,358.05 $667,451.88

Shipping

GRAND TOTAL

$171,207.90 $207,295.55 

15

$105,077.70 

BID TAB
25B-2390 COUNTYWIDE CAMERA PROJECT ADDITIONAL HARDWARE RE-BID

BID OPENING - FEBRUARY 19, 2025 @ 11:30 AM

VENDOR NAME

$182,503.50 $177,360.00 $150,462.90 $364,348.21 

HPE Aruba Networking 6300M 48‑port HPE Smart Rate 

1/2.5/5GbE Class 6 PoE and 4‑port SFP56 Switch

HPE Aruba Networking 6400 48-port HPE Smart Rate 

1/2.5/5GbE Class 6 PoE and 4-port SFP56 v2 Module

$119,567.70 $207,670.20 $201,817.50 

$16,238.10 $7,137.92 Aruba Central Advanced - Subscription - 1 Switch - 5 Year 

15

$13,500.00 $19,695.90 $19,140.75 

$48,266.85 $58,590.09 

HPE Aruba Networking 25G SFP28 to SFP28 0.65m Direct 

Attach Copper Cable
20

$2,427.60 $4,216.40 $4,097.60 $3,678.60 $4,155.10 

HPE Aruba Networking 25G SFP28 LC LR 10km SMF 

Transceiver
16

$34,937.28 $60,680.64 $58,970.40 

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

Prepared By:      DoIT 
Committee:      Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:       March 6, 2025 
Board Meeting Date:    March 13, 2025  
Resolution Title:           Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Information Technology Support Services with Rockford Housing 
Authority 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes                                            Amount Anticipated Annually: $68,558 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 19500                                             Descriptor:  

 

Background Information:    The County of Winnebago Department of Information Technology 
(WinCo DoIT) currently has an expired Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Rockford Housing 
Authority (RHA) that has expired. WinCo DoIT and RHA wish to continue this IGA but initiating a 
new agreement for a 1-year term, with 5 additional 1-year renewal options.   
 
Support is based on 72 hours per month at a monthly rate of $5,713.20. If hours exceed 72 hours, 
they are billed hourly at a rate of $79.35. 
 
Recommendation:  
Adopt the new Intergovernmental Agreement for Information Technology as a Service (ITaaS) by 
and Between the County of Winnebago (County) and the RHA 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
County to execute the Intergovernmental Agreement for Information Technology as a Service 
(ITaaS) by and Between the County and the RHA (see Resolution Exhibit A).   
 
Legal Review:   
SAO has reviewed the IGA 
 
Follow-Up:    
Return signed copy to RHA upon adoption 
 



County Board Meeting:  March 13, 2025 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD TO EXECUTE AN  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES 

WITH ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) 
is seeking to renew an Intergovernmental Agreement for Information Technology Services; and 

 

 

WHEREAS,  WinCo DoIT previously provided these services to the Rockford Housing 
Authority; and  

 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, WinCo DoIT will provide services at the rates provided (See Resolution 
Exhibit A); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee concurs with this request and 
recommends approval by the Winnebago County Board. 

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois., hereby authorizes the execution of this Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
Rockford Housing Authority 1-year term, with 5 additional 1-year renewal options. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director 
of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 

 

 



     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

SUPPORT SERVICES BETWEEN  

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO AND ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this 13th 

day of March, 2025, by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a body politic and 

corporate (the “County”), and the Rockford Housing Authority (“RHA”), a Municipal Corporation 

organized pursuant to 310 ILCS 10/1, et seq (collectively “the Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the RHA is a municipal corporation that provides decent, safe and sanitary 

housing for residents in the City of Rockford, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA has certain information technology needs in order to provide these 

services to its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the County through its Department of Information Technology, (WinCo 

DoIT), provides certain information technology services to governmental agencies in the County 

of Winnebago, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, in December 2017 the Parties previously entered into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement for the County to provide Information Technology Support Services to the RHA; and  

WHEREAS, the RHA seeks to continue to use WinCo DoIT as a comprehensive 

technology and network service provider; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA will benefit by the cooperation evidenced by the agreement between 

the public bodies who are parties hereto; and  

WHEREAS, RHA and the County seek to collaborate on efficiency in areas of information 

technology and network services; and 

WHEREAS, the RHA Procurement Policy allows for the entry of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and mutual agreements contained 

herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. AUTHORITY

This Agreement is entered between the County and RHA pursuant to the Illinois 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) the Housing Authority Act (310 ILCS 

10/1 et seq.) and Housing Cooperation Act (310 ILCS 15/1). 

Resolution Exhibit A



 

 

 II. PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the parties’ understanding with respect to the 

provision of Information Technology support and services to RHA. Information Technology 

support and services shall be provided to RHA by the County through WinCo DoIT.  

 

III.  WinCo DoIT RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The County, through its WinCo DoIT shall provide Information Technology support and 

services as requested by RHA.  These services may include: email (including archiving), web site 

hosting, file sharing, application hosting, data storage, data backup process, data backup storage, 

internet service, public IPs, VoIP services and host based anti-virus protection. This list is subject 

to change.  Additional services may be negotiated on an as needed basis. In the event any hardware 

or software is needed, WinCo DoIT will notify RHA, which shall procure the materials needed 

pursuant to the RHA procurement policy.    

  

IV. RHA RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The RHA shall provide WinCo DoIT with guidance from Linda Dorsey Tillman of the 

RHA or her designee as to the services required under this Agreement. 

 

V.        COMPENSATION: 

 

1. The County, through WinCo DoIT shall provide Information Technology 

Support Services to the RHA for seventy-two (72) hours per month at the rate 

of Five Thousand Seven Hundred Thirteen and 20/100 Dollars ($5,713.20) per 

month.  Hours exceeding seventy-two (72) hours per month will be billed at 

the rate of Seventy-Nine and 35/100 Dollars ($79.35) per hour.  Unused hours 

may not be carried over. Billing occurs door to door. RHA shall procure all 

technology-related materials, including any hardware and software costs.   

2. WinCo DoIT shall bill the RHA monthly with invoices setting forth the 

services performed and hours worked.  The RHA shall pay these invoices 

according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act, 50 ILCS 

505/1 et seq. 

 

 VI.      TERM 

 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on execution and shall continue for a period of one 

(1) year. This Agreement may be extended for additional one (1) year term by written agreement 

of the parties for a maximum total of five (5) years. Either party may terminate this Agreement at 

any time and for any reason upon giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the other 

party. Notice of the termination specifying the effective date of the termination must be given as 

set forth in Article VIII of this Agreement. Upon receipt of this termination notice, RHA and the 

County shall discontinue all services upon the effective date of the termination notice. In the event 

of termination for convenience by RHA or County, RHA shall be liable only for payment for 

services rendered up to the effective date of the termination. 

 



 

 

 VII. CONTACT PERSONS 

 

 For purposes of administering this Agreement, the County representative is the Winnebago 

County Administrator or their designee, and the representative for RHA is the Chief Executive 

Officer or their designee. 

 

 VIII. NOTICES 

 

All notices, requests and communications which are required or may be given under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 

or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier or mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, or 

certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

 

Notices to the County shall be addressed to: 

 

Winnebago County Administrator 

County Board Office 

404 Elm Street, Suite 533  

Rockford, Illinois 61101 

 

Notices to RHA shall be addressed to: 

 

Laura Snyder  

CEO 

Rockford Housing Authority  

223 S. Winnebago Street 

Rockford, Illinois 61102 

 

Attorney Timothy F. Horning 

Meyer and Horning P.C. 

3400 N. Rockton Avenue 

Rockford, Illinois 61103 

 

 IX. WAIVERS 

 

It is understood and agreed that nothing contained herein is intended or should be construed 

as in any way affecting the status of RHA and the County as separate, independent and distinct 

entities under Illinois or any other law.  It is further understood and agreed that the entry into this 

Agreement by the County and RHA shall not operate or be construed as a way of limiting any 

rights, claims or actions one may have against the other. In no event shall the County or WinCo 

DoIT be liable in contract, tort, strict liability, warranty or otherwise for any damages under this 

Agreement, including special, incidental or consequential damages, such as, but not limited to, 

delay, disruption, loss of product, loss of anticipated revenue, loss of use of the equipment or 

system, non-operation or increased expense of operation of other equipment or systems, cost of 

capital or cost of purchase or replacement equipment, systems or power, even if it has been advised 



 

 

of the possibility of such damages.  The County’s liability for damages of any kind shall in no 

event exceed the amount actually paid by RHA for the services provided under this Agreement.  

 

 X. COUNTERPARTS 

 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original. 

 

 XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENTS; SEVERABILITY 

 

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties and supersedes all 

prior communications and writings with respect to the content of this Agreement.  This Agreement 

cannot be modified or amended except by mutual written agreement of the parties.  If any term or 

provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable for any reason, or declared null 

and void by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect except as otherwise provided herein. 

 

 XII. AUTHORITY 

 

 The County and RHA each warrant to the other that they have the authority to enter into 

this Agreement and that the person or persons executing this Agreement on their behalf has been 

duly authorized to act as the representative or officer of each respective party in affixing their 

signatures to the Agreement.  The County and RHA hereto agree to sign such documents, enact 

such ordinances or resolutions, or perform such further obligations as may be necessary to 

effectuate the purposes of this Agreement. 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement this 13th day  

 

of March, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

  



 

 

ATTEST: 

 

COUNTY CLERK    THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
___________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Lori Gummow, Clerk of the County  Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the County  

Board of the County of Winnebago,  Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Illinois 

 

[SEAL] 

 

 

ROCKFORD HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

       

BY: ___________________________________                                                                    

        Laura Snyder, Chief Executive Officer 

 

ATTEST: 

 

BY: 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department of behalf of DoIT 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 6, 2025 
Board Date:  March 13, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding PC Obsolescence Project Using CIP 2025 Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $390,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $390,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER        By: $24,480 
Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-42117-C2514   Descriptor: CIP 2025 Funds 
Budget Impact? $365,520 

Background Information:  The County Department of Information Technology (DoIT) has 
developed a replacement strategy for PC’s.  This plan was submitted as a CIP 2025 item. DoIT 
plans to replace approximately 300 PCs annually countywide. 

In January of 2025, the County Purchasing Department issued IFB 25B-2387 PC Obsolescence 
Project and six bid submissions were received, with Entre Computer Solutions, Inc. being 
the lowest responsive and responsible bidder (See Resolution Exhibit A). 

Recommended By:  Dan Magers, Chief Information Officer  

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Entre Computer Solutions, Inc. 



County Board Meeting:  March 13, 2025 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2025 CR 

RESOLUTION  AWARDING PC OBSOLESCENCE PROJECT USING CIP 2025 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for IFB 25B-2387 PC Obsolescence
Project for the County of Winnebago Department of Technology (DoIT) in January to 
replace approximately 300 PC’s annually where the warranty has or is soon to expire and 
six submissions were received; and, 

         WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the bids received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

ENTRE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 
8900 NORTH SECOND STREET 

MACHESNEY PARK, ILLINOIS 61115 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order in the amount of 
$365,520, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, with ENTRE COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC., 8900 
NORTH SECOND STREET, MACHESNEY PARK, ILLINOIS 61115. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director of 
Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



                           Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



DESCRIPTIONS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

HP ALL-IN-ONES 255 $1,232.16 $314,200.80 $1,304.49 $322,644.95 $1,800.57 $459,144.84 $1,673.65 $426,779.99 $1,523.27 $388,433.85 $1,368.13 $348,873.15

HP ALL-IN-ONES                                   

TOUCHSCREEN
14 $1,172.78 $16,418.92 $1,241.63 $17,382.82 $1,308.16 $18,314.24 $1,619.04 $22,666.51 $1,473.57 $20,629.98 $1,302.20 $18,230.80

HP LAPTOPS 23 $1,063.92 $24,470.16 $1,147.74 $26,398.02 $1,459.26 $33,562.96 $1,386.79 $31,896.22 $1,226.55 $28,210.65 $1,181.32 $27,170.36

SURFACE PRO 8 $1,198.89 $9,591.12 $1,255.62 $10,044.96 $1,323.60 $10,588.84 $1,265.09 $10,120.70 $1,134.06 $9,072.48 $1,215.28 $9,722.24

SURFACE PRO KEYBOARD 8 $104.87 $838.96 $106.92 $855.36 $112.10 $896.81 $109.39 $875.09 $100.06 $800.48 $113.09 $904.72

BID TAB
24B-2387 PC OBSOLESCENCE PROJECT 

BID OPENING - FEBRUARY 12, 2025 @ 11:30 AM

Entre Computer Solutions, INC.                                         

Machesney Park, IL

Heartland Business Systems                             

Lisle, IL

KD Dynamic Solutions, LLC.                               

Oswego, IL

ClearConnect                                    

Cottonwood, ID

CDW-G                                                              

Vernon Hills, IL

SHI                                                               

Somerset, NJ

$522,508 $492,339 $447,147 $404,901

VENDOR NAME

TOTAL $365,520 $377,326

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Department of Information Technology 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 6, 2025 
Board Date:  March 13, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Managed Detection and Response 

Using CIP 2025 Funds  
Budget Information 

Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $425,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $425,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $47,612 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-43167-C2515    Descriptor: CIP 25 Arctic Wolf 
Budget Impact? $ 377,388 

Background Information:    The Winnebago County Department of Information Technology 
(WinCo DoIT) is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for 
public safety, public health, a nursing home, the circuit courts, elections and all other Elected and 
Appointed officials. Essential to this is ensuring the safety of the County’s data and networks. To 
do so, WinCo DoIT has previously researched the cost and feasibility of hiring the necessary 
specialty security staff and supporting software and hardware to establish a Security Operations 
Center (SOC). Upon calculating the cost of a County owned and operated SOC, WinCo DoIT instead 
looked instead towards signing an agreement with a Managed Detection and Response (MDR) 
provider. WinCo DoIT evaluated multiple MDR providers from 2018-2021 and selected Arctic Wolf 
in late 2021. In January of 2022, after presenting to this Committee, the Board approved a 3-year 
contract with Arctic Wolf. This contract has now come up for renewal. 

This system is installed on all computers and servers owned by the County (1300+ endpoints) and 
provides monitoring, evaluation, detection and remediation of threats 24 hours a day. Along with 
these MDR services, Arctic Wolf also meets the requirements from the State of Illinois 20 ILCS 
1375/5-30 for Cybersecurity Training for local government employees. As this solution continues 
to be an effective solution for WinCo DoIT to manage, monitor, and protect the County’s 
electronic assets, as well as meets the needs for statutory cybersecurity training requirements, we 
recommend another 3-year term with Arctic Wolf. See Resolution Exhibit A for comparisons from 
other MDR providers that were considered in this renewal process. 

Recommended By:  Chief Information Officer, Dan Magers 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will issue Purchase Orders to the Entre in the amount 
of $377,388. 



County Board Meeting:  March 13, 2025 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING CYBERSECURITY MANAGED DETECTION AND 

RESPONSE USING CIP 2025 FUNDS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Department of Information Technology (WinCo DoIT) 
is required to provide a secure and reliable information technology infrastructure for all 
departments; and 

 

 

WHEREAS,  WinCo DoIT needs to utilize a cybersecurity detection and response provider 
to maintain security, three quotes were obtained (See Resolution Exhibit A); and  

 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, Arctic Wolf is the County’s chosen platform and ensures compliance with the 
statutory cybersecurity training requirements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee concurs with this request and 
recommends approval by the Winnebago County Board. 

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois., hereby authorizes the Purchasing Department to execute a purchase order to Arctic 
Wolf for a three year term in the amount of $377,388. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director 
of Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 

 

 



     Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Arctic Wolf Sophos SentinelOne

Log Aggregation/Filtering Provided Provided Provided

24/7/365 SOC Coverage Provided Provided Provided

Monthly Review/Intel Meetings Provided Provided Provided

Cybersecurity Training Provided Not Offered Provided

Annual Cost 125,769$             146,260$              272,987$                    

Total 3 Year Cost 377,388$             438,780$              818,961$                    

QUOTE TAB

25NB-2394 DETECTION AND RESPONSE RENEWAL

 USING CIP 2025 FUNDS

Purchasing Department  |  404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380   |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
For CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department of behalf of DoIT 
Committee Name: Operations & Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: March 6, 2025 
Board Date:  March 13, 2025     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Uninterrupted Power Supplies Using CIP 2025 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $100,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $100,000 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER        By: $33,416 
Reason for CIP increase?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46586-C2511   Descriptor: CIP 2025 Funds 
Budget Impact? $66,584 

Background Information:  The County Department of Information Technology (DoIT) needs to 
secure the necessary IT equipment to replace their Uninterrupted Power Supplies (UPS) in 
one of their data centers and in many IT closets, as many of the current devices are past 
end of life. 

In January of 2025, Purchasing issued IFB 25B-2383 Uninterrupted Power Supplies (UPS).  The 
bid was sent out to multiple local businesses, as well as, posted on the nationwide bidding 
platform, DemandStar.  There was a total on nine submissions received with True Technology, LLC 
being the lowest responsive and responsible bid (See Resolution Exhibit A). 

Recommended By:  Dan Magers, Chief Information Officer  

Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to True Technology, LLC. 



County Board Meeting:  March 13, 2025 
 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2025 CR 
 

RESOLUTION  AWARDING UNINTERRUPTED POWER SUPPLIES USING CIP 2025 FUNDS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

          
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for bid 25B-2383 Uninterrupted Power 
Supplies (UPS) in January to secure the necessary IT equipment to replace their 
Uninterrupted Power Supplies (UPS) in one of their data centers and in many IT closets, 
as many of the current devices are past end of life; and, 
 

 

           WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  
 

TRUE TECHNOLOGY, LLC 
3100 INTERSTATE N. CIRCLE STE. 100 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30339 
 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

 
 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a Purchase Order in the amount of 
$66,584, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, with TRUE TECHNOLOGY, LLC, 3100 INTERSTATE 
N. CIRCLE STE. 100, ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30339. 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chief Information Officer, Director of 
Purchasing, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 
 
 
 



                           Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2025. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



DESCRIPTIONS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

UNIT 

PRICE

TOTAL 

PRICE

IDFs (1500 VA Lithium 

Rackmount)
82 $720.00 $59,040.00 $1,499.00 $122,918.00 $1,748.96 $143,414.80 $2,406.64 $197,344.48 $1,577.32 $129,340.24 $1,669.00 $136,858.00 $1,909.96 $156,617.00 $1,655.95 $135,787.90 $1,388.54 $113,860.28

Eaton 2-Post Rackmount Kit 82 $92.00 $7,544.00 $78.50 $6,437.00 $92.26 $7,565.66 $106.51 $8,733.82 $84.08 $6,894.56 Included Included $100.97 $8,280.00 $86.33 $7,079.06 Included Included

BID TAB
24B-2383 UNINTERRUPTED POWER SUPPLIES (UPS)

BID OPENING - FEBRUARY 12, 2025 @ 11:00 AM

True Technology LLC IT Savvy Clear Connect

Mountain Pacific 

Contracting & 

Consulting 

Wilson Electric 

Company 

Heartland Business 

Systems

$150,980 $206,078 $164,897 $113,860

VENDOR NAME

TOTAL $66,584 $129,355

Entre Computer 

Solutions 
CDW-GOre Power LLC

$136,235 $136,858 $142,867

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Thursday, March 6, 2025 
Committee: Operations & Administrative 
Prepared By: Carlos Molina 

Board Office 
404 Elm Street, Rm 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | E-mail: boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov 

Document Title: Resolution Granting a Temporary Construction Easement from Property at 650 
W. State Street in the City of Rockford to the State of Illinois Department of
Transportation for Road Construction Purposes

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Budgeted? N/A            Amount Budgeted?  N/A 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source? 
State of IL acquiring Right-Of-Way
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   N/A 
Over or Under approved amount? N/A By: $
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes:       Descriptor: 
Budget Impact?  N/A 

Background Information: 
The State of Illinois and the City of Rockford are requesting a temporary construction 

easement from Winnebago County on the back of property at 650 W State St (Justice Center), 
for road improvements along Chestnut Street (E bound US Bus 20). They are specifically 
requesting a total of 1,176 square feet at the two entrances for grading, shaping, reconstruction 
and working space. This will not affect the parking lot operations and no parking spaces will be 
lost. The City has tendered an offer of $1,000 for the two tracks included in this temporary 
construction easement. The easement will terminate 3 years after execution of this document or 
after completion of the proposed project, whichever is sooner. 

Recommendation:  
Administration supports intergovernmental relationships that support public interest, which this 
does both. 

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Staff can follow-up with any questions that the Committee or entire Board has.

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:boardoffice@admin.wincoil.gov


                            COUNTY BOARD MEETING: MARCH 13, 2025 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2025 CR _______ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY: KEITH MCDONALD 

 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 
FROM PROPERTY AT 650 W STATE ST IN THE CITY OF ROCKFORD 
TO THE STATE OF ILLINOIS DEPARMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FOR ROAD CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES 
 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) is the fee simple owner of 
property located at 650 W State Street, PIN No’s 11-22-433-015 and 11-22-433-016; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockford, Illinois (City) and the State of Illinois Department of 
Transportation (State) desire to acquire a temporary construction easement described as Parcel 
No. 20324005TE, tracks 1 and 2, on the attached survey, Exhibit A (0.027 acres or 1,176 square 
feet more or less), for road improvements along Chestnut Street (E. Bound US Bus 20) under 
Section No. 22-00663-00-BT (Contract N. 85750); and 

WHEREAS, the City has offered the sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) for said 
temporary construction easement which is needed for the purpose of entrance reconstruction, 
grading, shaping and working room during road construction and will not affect the parking lot 
operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, having conferred with the County Administration, has 
determined that it is in the best interests of the County to grant to the State and the City said 
temporary construction easement.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, a temporary construction easement, Parcel No. 20324005TE, tracks 1 and 2 
on the attached Exhibit A, specifically located along Chestnut Street (E. Bound US Bus 20) on 
property owned by the County at 650 W. State Street, PIN No’s 11-22-433-015 and 11-22-433-
016 in the City of Rockford, be granted to the City and the State for road construction purposes. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby 

authorized and directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to execute all the 



   

2 of 3 
 

documents necessary and approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office to 
effectuate the granting of said temporary construction easement, as shown on Exhibit A. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Administrator, Director of 
Purchasing, Finance Director, County Auditor and County Engineer.   



   

3 of 3 
 

                                                                                                              Respectfully Submitted, 
                                                    OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
 

 Keith McDonald, Chairman 
 
 

Valerie Hanserd 
 
 

 Valerie Hanserd 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

John Butitta 
 

 John Butitta 
 
 

Joe Hoffman 
 

 Joe Hoffman 
 
 

Jaime Salgado  Jaime Salgado 
 
 

Michael Thompson  Michael Thompson 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 

Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 

 

 
 



EXHIBIT A





















UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



Appointments 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

  ResExSummary 20.1 version 

Prepared By: Health Department Finance 
Committee: Finance 
Committee Date: February 20, 2025 
Resolution Title:  Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Various Health Department 
Grant Awards 
County Code:  Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
Board Meeting Date: February 27, 2025 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No    Appropriation Amount:   $0 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice Grant 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60300 State’s Attorney Grants / various / 02121 EIP Grant 

FY2025 Budget Impact: $186,422 for Year 1 of award 

Background Information: The County Health Department has been awarded six grant awards 
that are aligned with their community health priorities.  These awards help the financial 
sustainability of the agency and require an increase of the expenditure budget to perform the 
deliverables under these programs.  Expenditures are offset by related revenues. 

Recommendation: Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement: N/A  

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up:  Adjust Munis line Items        



1 

2025 Fiscal Year Finance: February 20, 2025 
Lay Over: February 27, 2025 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: March 13, 2025 

John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2025 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Various Health Department Grant Awards 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Health Department has been awarded six grant awards 
that are aligned with their community health priorities that help the financial sustainability of the 
agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025 at its September 26, 2024 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #25-009 Health Department Grant Awards. 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  PAUL ARENA 
 

                                                                                                      PAUL ARENA 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
 

                                                                        CHRISTINA VALDEZ 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2025. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 



Winnebago County Health Deparment budget Amendment Detail
Fiscal Year 2025

Account Account Description FSSS-24 BASE HRP HEZ HUD HH TCPSSY-25 Total
32110 Federal Operating Grant -$273,861 -$270,000 -$134,400 -$678,261
32120 State Operating Grant -$57,760 -$99,252 -$157,013
32130 Local Operation Grant -$100,000 -$100,000
41110 Wages $30,358 $159,312 $55,856 $38,910 $91,800 $62,762 $438,999
41231 IMRF $638 $3,346 $1,173 $817 $1,900 $1,318 $9,191
41241 FICA $2,322 $12,187 $4,273 $2,977 $7,000 $4,801 $33,561
42110 Supplies $15,000 $18,483 $4,757 $3,000 $1,449 $42,690
42260 Medical Supplies $32,717 $32,717
43190 Contractual Services $1,283 $11,000 $30,000 $133,300 $175,583
43212 Telephone $259 $259
43310 Travel $201 $4,006 $2,512 $754 $5,000 $944 $13,417
43943 Training & Education $1,088 $36,488 $37,575
48211 Health Insurance $4,009 $29,871 $6,703 $7,272 $20,000 $10,230 $78,086
49110 Occupancy(Transfer 555) $5,670 $941 $6,611

Grand Total (Profit)/Loss -$5,233 -$24,381 $0 -$12,823 -$8,000 -$16,148 -$66,585

Total Awards 57,760$          365,148$       200,000$       118,000$       1,547,750$    168,000$       2,456,658$    

Legend
FSSS-24 Firearm Safe Storage Strategies
BASE Build Amplify Support Empower - Opioid Response Program
HRP Enancement of the Harm Reduction Program - Opioid Settlement funds from Winnebago County 2 Year program
HEZ Illinois Health Equtiy Zones Pilot - 2025
HUD HH HUD Health Homes program additional 42 month grant
TCPSSY-25 Teaching Coping Problem Solving Skills for Youth - 2025  - a suicide prevention program

Programs



1/21/2025
Health Department James Keeler

60100/0301

Department Org 
Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description Adopted Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
60100/1100 41110 Wages 7,423,019.00$    $7,423,019 $438,999 $7,862,018
60100/1100 41241 FICA 335,595.00$        $335,595 $33,561 $369,156
60100/1100 41231 IMRF 80,500.00$          $80,500 $9,191 $89,691
60100/1100 48211 Health Insurance 1,241,632.00$    $1,241,632 $78,086 $1,319,718
60100/1100 42110 Supplies 18,000.00$          $18,000 $42,690 $60,690
60100/1100 43310 Travel 66,000.00$          $66,000 $13,417 $79,417
60100/1100 42260 Medical Supplies 160,000.00$        $160,000 $32,717 $192,717
60100/1100 43212 Telephone 34,000.00$          $34,000 $259 $34,259
60100/1100 43190 Contractual Services 1,249,924.00$    $1,249,924 $175,583 $1,425,507
60100/1100 43943 Training & Education 24,000.00$          $24,000 $37,575 $61,575
60100/1100 49110 Occupancy(Transfer 555) 320,000.00$        $320,000 $6,611 $326,611
60100/1100 32110 Federal Operating Grant (5,827,178.00)$   ($5,827,178) ($678,261) ($6,505,439)
60100/1100 32120 State Operating Grant (926,906.00)$      ($926,906) ($157,013) ($1,083,919)
60100/1100 32130 Local Operating Grant (373,568.00)$      ($373,568) ($100,000) ($473,568)

$0 $0
(66,585)$                3,758,433$     

Original 

Budget

Budget 

Amendments to 

Date Including 

Above Proposed 

Amendment

Proposed 

Revised 

Budget

Fund:

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

Date:

Date:

Date:Board of Health:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:
None

Impact to fiscal year 2025 budget:  Revnue Expense:
Increase of revenues of $9535,273 and and increase of expenditures of $868,689 resulting in a decrease of expenditures over 
revenues of $66,584 reducing our budgeted loss from $694,524 to a loss of $627,940.00

IDPH Illinois Department of Public Health, HUD, Winnebago County Opioid Settlement funds

Director of Finance:

Public Health Administrator:

The Winnebago County Health Department has applied and been awarded six different grant awards that are aligned with 
our community health priorities.  These awards help the financial sustainability of the agency and require an increase of 
expenditures to perform the deliverables under these grant programs.  

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:
FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 301

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: #1

2025
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

Announcements & Communications 
Date: March 13, 2025 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission the following:

a. Federal Register/Vol. 90, No. 36/Tuesday, February 25, 2025/Notices

b. Byron Station-Commercial Grade Dedication Report 05000454/2025010 and
05000455/2025010

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications Quarterly Franchise
Fee Payment for the following

a. Harlem, IL, Township of (Winnebago Co)
b. Town of Rockton, IL
c. Town of Roscoe, IL

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim against County of Winnebago entitled Cesar Chavez vs. Winnebago County
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Electing to Opt-In to the Illinois Electronics Recycling Program for Program Year 2026
	Resolution Allocating Host Fee Funds to the Rkfd. Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium & Office Building Authority D/B/A the Rockford Area Venues & Entertainment Authority (RAVE) for Capital Improvement Projects & Infrastructure at BMO Center
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Countywide Camera Project Additional Hardware using CIP 2025 Funds
	Resolution Authorizing Chairman of County Board to Execute an IGA for Information Technology Support Services with Rkfd. Housing Authority
	Resolution Awarding PC Obsolescence Project using CIP 2025 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Cybersecurity Managed Detection & Response using CIP 2025 Funds
	Resolution Awarding Uninterrupted Power Supplies using CIP 2025 Funds
	Resolution Granting a Temporary Construction Easement from Property at 650 W. State St. in City of Rkfd. to State of IL Dept. of Transportation for Road Construction Purposes
	Unfinished Business
	Appointments - River Bluff Board of Directors, Lowell Ingram
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Various Health Department Grant Awards
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment

	Organization  Business Name: Rockford Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and Office Building Authority
	Contact Person 1: Gretchen Gilmore
	Position: General Manager
	Phone #1 Area Code: 815
	Phone #1-3: 489
	Phone #1-4: 8233
	1-E-mail#: ggilmore
	E-mail #1-@: asmrockford.com
	Contact Person 2: 
	Position_2: 
	Phone #2 Area Code: 
	Phone #2-3: 
	Phone #2-4: 
	2-E-mail: 
	E-mail#2@: 
	Location  Address: 300 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101
	PIN-1: 
	PIN-2: 
	PIN-3: 
	PIN-4: 
	PIN-5: 
	PIN-6: 
	PIN-7: 
	PIN-8: 
	PIN-9: 
	PIN-10: 
	2-PIN-1: 
	2-PIN-2: 
	2-PIN-3: 
	2-PIN-4: 
	2-PIN-5: 
	2-PIN-6: 
	2-PIN-7: 
	2-PIN-8: 
	2-PIN-9: 
	2-PIN-10: 
	New Construction-Check Box: Off
	Existing - New Construction SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - New Construction SF: 
	Total - New Construction SF: 
	Addition/Expansion-Check Box6: Off
	Existing - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Total - Addition/Expansion SF: 
	Remodel-Check Box7: Off
	Existing - Remodel SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - Remodel SF: 
	Total - Remodel SF: 
	Other-Check Box8: Yes
	Existing - Other SF: 
	Proposed/Additional - Other SF: 
	Total - Other SF: 
	If other explain: 
	Start Date: 7/1/2026
	End Date: 6/30/2036
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Construction Jobs: 
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Construction Jobs: 
	Temporary Construction Jobs: 
	TOTAL Construction Jobs: 
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Newly Created Jobs: 
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Newly Created Jobs: 
	Temporary Newly Created Jobs: 
	TOTAL Newly Created Jobs: 
	FullTime Equivalent FTE Retained Jobs: 
	PartTime Equivalent PTE Retained Jobs: 
	Temporary Retained Jobs: 
	TOTAL Retained Jobs: 
	FullTime Equivalent FTE TOTAL: 
	PartTime Equivalent PTE TOTAL: 
	Temporary TOTAL: 
	TOTAL TOTAL: 
	Total Project Cost: 13,600,000
	Developer: 
	Text16$-1: 
	Text16$-2: 
	Text16$-3: 
	Text16$-4: 
	Text16$-5: 
	Text16$-6: 
	Text16$-7: 
	Text16$-8: 
	Text16$-9: 
	Developer 11: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved: 
	Municipality: City of Rockford
	Text17$-1: 
	Text17$-2: 
	Text17$-3: 9
	Text17$-4: 000
	Text17$-5: 0
	Text17$-6: 0
	Text17$-7: 0
	Text17$-8: 0
	Text17$-9: 0
	Municipality 12: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_2: 7/1/26-6/30/36
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_2: Capital funding from the City of Rockford from the redevelopment fund using the 1% metro tax
	Tax Body 1: 
	Text18$-1: 
	Text18$-2: 
	Text18$-3: 
	Text18$-4: 
	Text18$-5: 
	Text18$-6: 
	Text18$-7: 
	Text18$-8: 
	Text18$-9: 
	Taxing Body 13: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_3: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_3: 
	Tax Body 2: 
	Text19$-1: 
	Text19$-2: 
	Text19$-3: 
	Text19$-4: 
	Text19$-5: 
	Text19$-6: 
	Text19$-7: 
	Text19$-8: 
	Text19$-9: 
	Taxing Body 14: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_4: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_4: 
	Tax Body 3: 
	Text20$-1: 
	Text20$-2: 
	Text20$-4: 
	Text20$-3: 
	Text20$-5: 
	Text20$-6: 
	Text20$-7: 
	Text20$-8: 
	Text20$-9: 
	Taxing Body 15: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_5: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_5: 
	Other 1: 
	Text21$-1: 
	Text21$-2: 
	Text21$-3: 
	Text21$-4: 
	Text21$-5: 
	Text21$-6: 
	Text21$-7: 
	Text21$-8: 
	Text21$-9: 
	Other 16: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_6: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_6: 
	Other 2: 
	Text22$-1: 
	Text22$-2: 
	Text22$-3: 
	Text22$-4: 
	Text22$-5: 
	Text22$-6: 
	Text22$-7: 
	Text22$-8: 
	Text22$-9: 
	Other 17: Off
	DateRequested Anticipated Approved_7: 
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_7: 
	County: Winnebago
	Text23$-1: 
	Text23$-2: 
	Text23$-3: 4
	Text23$-4: 6
	Text23$-5: 0
	Text23$-6: 0
	Text23$-7: 0
	Text23$-8: 0
	Text23$-9: 0
	Check Box12: Yes
	Requested: 7/1/26-6/30/36
	Type s of Funding  InvolvementRequested Anticipated Approved_8: Capital funding from Winnebago county to support ongoing capital needs of the BMO Center
	Summary  Description of ProjectRow1: The BMO Center is a versatile, multi-purpose arena located in downtown Rockford, Illinois, serving as the home for the Rockford IceHogs, the American Hockey League affiliate of the Chicago Blackhawks. In addition to hosting IceHogs games, the venue also features a wide variety of events, including concerts, comedy performances, family shows, motor sports, and more. Owned by the Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (RAVE), the BMO Center underwent a pivotal transition in 2021 when RAVE facilitated the sale of the Rockford IceHogs to the Chicago Blackhawks, securing a long-term lease and ensuring continued investment in the Rockford area. This agreement included provisions for extensive renovations and upgrades to modernize the arena and meet current industry standards and expectations. Over the past three years, significant renovations focused on customer-facing improvements have been completed. However, the 44-year-old facility still contains a substantial amount of aging infrastructure that has either reached or is nearing the end of its useful life. The sale of the IceHogs and the revitalization of arena programming have positioned the BMO Center in a stronger financial standing, helping to reduce operating losses. Nonetheless, additional funding from the County is crucial for making necessary large-scale capital investments to maintain the facility’s partnership with the Blackhawks and to ensure the arena remains viable for hosting major events that contribute significantly to the local economy. 
	Expected Outcomes: RAVE is committed to fostering transparent communication with the County and has a dedicated seat on the Capital Projects and Infrastructure Working Group (CPIWG) to discuss capital expenditures and priorities. This collaboration will provide the County with clear insight and confidence that their investment is directly supporting necessary capital needs at the BMO Center.
	Applicant Name Printed: Gretchen Gilmore 
	Applicant Name Signature: 
	Date: 2/7/2025


